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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEREE

Market Leader in China for Four Consecutive Years since IPO World’'s #4
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Net Profit b= RalbE 205 242 -15.3%
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2016 MAJOR EVENTS
2016 FXEHT

1 2016 China Securities Golden
Bauhinia Award - the Best
Listed Company in Technology

Innovation
BE[2016PEIFFSERME -
RERFEAF LT AT

2016 Golden Hong Kong Stock Awards,
the Best Shareholders' Return & the Best
Social Responsibilities
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Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private
3 Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, for
oversea expansion
2EMBLARSHESRBE (FINK)BR
DERY - URSHEEBN TS HRER

GCaaS Cloud Platform Launched at
the Computing Conference

EHEGCaaSPHHIREMAE - RHBHZEE

IoT Secure Transaction Engineering &
Technology Center
KEEREVNBHRZEZXS TRENHERE
B |85

Luxury GPS Payment Watch Delivered
EHRESHIFHE RGPS Fi&
£
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Prized Again with ICMA Elan Award,
Highest Honor of Global Card Industry
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Selected Exclusively as Anti-
counterfeiting Ticketing Solution
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Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc. First
Secure Payment Solution Provider in
the Philippines to be Certified by VISA,
MasterCard and China UnionPay
Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc.pX B JEE
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Korea Financial Telecommunications
& Clearings Institute.

Certified by Quality Management System
of Korea Financial Telecommunications &
Clearing Institute Commission (KFTC)
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Leveraging the management team’s vast expertise and abundant experience
in the financial industry, the Group will operate within the core tenets of
finance and boldly innovate by combining IoT and Cloud technologies, whilst
continuing its overseas expansion, to drive towards continuous growth.

BREECEECSREXFAIMN
RABFNEELR  FAEEKERELTH
MBROARE - GEWBE - ERMWAMERIF -

BBHRBESITE
HBAEEERREER -



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Directors” and “Board” respectively) of
Goldpac Group Limited (the “Company”), | am
delighted to present the Annual Report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

10 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2016
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2016 was a year when China’s financial industry returned to a more
sensible and orderly development. As previously anticipated by
the Group’s management, the unregulated expansion of internet
finance in China would eventually lose steam and chart a course
towards the two core principles of financial industry, namely
credit management and risk control. This regulatory progression
will benefit and contribute towards a more steady and structured
future for the entire financial industry. The Group is optimistic and
confident that this will benefit the Group’s medium and long term
development.

Due to the slow-down in China’s economic growth and tightening
of financial regulations, the Group recorded fluctuation in
performance for the first half of 2016 while the Group’s
performance took a favorable turn and improved notably in the
second half of 2016. The year on year gap in turnover and net profit
narrowed progressively in the second half of 2016. The Group hopes
it could achieve further performance improvement in 2017.

Profit is always a high priority for most companies. As a publicly-
listed company, the Company considers that maintaining a
consistent level of profit can demonstrate its commitment to
its shareholders. In 2016, the Group’s net profit amounted to
RMB204.9 million, above the average of its peers in the industry.
Over the four years since its initial public offering in Hong Kong
(“the IPO") in 2013, the Group has achieved an aggregate net
profit of RMB801 million. The Board proposed to declare a final
dividend of HK7.0 cents and a special dividend of HK6.0 cents per
ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016,
arriving at the annual dividend ratio of 61.3%. If the proposal is
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the aggregate dividend paid since its IPO in
2013 to the year 2016 would be HK46.8 cents per ordinary share.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
Iﬁ*ﬁﬂ: (nﬁ

Smart secure payment solutions will be the global payment
industry’s mainstream development vehicle. Currently, smart secure
payment technology is undoubtedly the safest payment method,
distinguished by its cost-efficiency and wide acceptance globally.
Through the development in the past several decades, the smart
secure payment sector is now in its golden age and will continue to
grow along the path of advancing innovative technologies. This will
contribute stable returns for the Group in the foreseeable future.
The Group will consolidate its existing competitiveness in smart
secure payment to fully capitalize on the returns offered by the
industry’s development.

The consumer financing market in China is now growing
aggressively, presenting enormous market potential and becoming
a new area of growth for China’s banking industry. Having
experienced decades of development, China’s credit card industry
has matured progressively in terms of product design, risk control
and market promotion and will surely be chosen by banks in China
as a key tool to explore the consumer finance market. It can be
predicted that the credit card industry will embark on a trend of
fast-growing opportunities, which will contribute to the Group’s
growth.

The Group firmly believes that innovation in Fintech will be a strong
driving force for the evolution of the financial industry. However,
innovation that focuses purely on the merits of technology at
the expense of ignoring the core principles of finance will soon
be relegated by the market. Leveraging the management team’s
profound comprehension and abundant experience in financial
industry, the Group will strictly adhere to the two key financial
payment tenets, namely security and cost when capitalizing on its
advantages in Cloud and loT (Internet of Things) technologies to
drive the Group’s continuous growth.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group’s overseas expansion is continued. As at 31 December
2016, the Group’s products and services were delivered into
23 countries and regions. In 2017, the Group will work in sync
with China UnionPay’s overseas strategies to fully tap into the
market potential in Southeast Asia and enhance market share in
Bangladesh, Indonesia, Malaysia, Pakistan and Philippines. As well,
the Group will capitalize the business opportunities arising from the
China national IC industry’s global development and open the doors
to the market for foreign countries via China national IC chips.
Additionally, the Group will deliver the industry leading technology
platforms, managerial experiences and operations models via
merging, acquisition and partnerships.

The Group is confident in the sustainable and stable growth of the
secure payment market both in China and the world. As well, the
Group will positively plan and invest the future to maintain the
Group’s continuous development.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend

my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, members of the Board,
management teams, the staff and business partners of the Group.

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWREDMN

2016 was a year when China’s financial industry returned to a more
sensible and orderly development. As previously anticipated by
the Group’s management, the unregulated expansion of internet
finance in China would eventually lose steam and chart a course
towards the two core principles of financial industry, namely credit
management and risk control. This return was inevitable not only
due to the nature and objective pattern of the financial industry, but
also due to the Chinese government’s continuous efforts towards
rectification and regulation.

In 2016, the People’s Bank of China, together with several
government regulatory agencies, published a number of papers
reiterating that the financial payment card clearing house is a
critical component of the financial infrastructure and a fundamental
safeguard for national financial security. At the same time, internet
finance enterprises shall operate under the financial regulatory
and compliance framework, so that they can no longer take
advantage of the differing regulatory policies. On 5 March 2017,
Mr. Li Kegiang, Premier of the State Council of People’s Republic
of China (“the PRC"), addressed in the Report on the Work of the
Government that close attention should be paid to the cumulative
risk in internet finance and that the Chinese government will
promote financial regulatory system reforms progressively to rectify
the financial market and safeguard China’s financial security. The
internet financial industry in China is now transitioning away from
the disorderly path seen over the past few years and will now evolve
and integrate together with the banking industry under the same
regulatory framework. This regulatory progression will benefit and
contribute towards a more steady and structured future for the
entire financial industry. The Group is optimistic and confident that
this will benefit the Group’s medium and long term development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE W R DM )

2016 REVIEW

The adjustment of the financial industry as a whole in China had
a volatile effect on the payment industry. Additionally, the growth
of China’s overall economy continued to slow down, causing an
adverse impact on the Group's performance for the first half of
2016. However, with the resumption of a more orderly development
of the payment industry, the Group’s performance took a favorable
turn and improved notably in the second half of 2016. In 2016, the
Group achieved a turnover of RMB1,393.7 million and a net profit
of RMB204.9 million, representing a decrease of 17.3% and 15.3%
as compared to the preceding year, respectively. The year on year
gap in turnover and net profit caused by the fluctuation narrowed
progressively in the second half of 2016. Compared to the first half
of 2016, the Group’s turnover and net profit for the second half of
2016 achieved an increase of 4.5% and 14.8%, respectively.

With the evolving technologies and the Group’s business
advancement, the business segments of the Group were re-
classified in the financial year ended 31 December 2016 to better
describe the Group’s current and future business nature. In 2016,
the turnover of two business segments, namely the Embedded
Software and Secure Payment Products, and Platform and
Service amounted to RMB1,164.7 million and RMB229.0 million,
representing a decrease of 16.2% and 22.3% as compared to the
preceding year, respectively.

In 2016, the Group accomplished several achievements as
highlighted below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEBERWR D@

Maintaining consistent level of profit and
improving profit margin

Profit is always a high priority for most companies. As
a publicly-listed company, the Company considers that
maintaining a consistent level of profit can demonstrate its
commitment to its shareholders. The Group takes pride in
delivering consistent level of profit. In 2016, the Group's net
profit amounted to RMB204.9 million, above the average of its
peers in the industry. Over the four years since its IPO in 2013,
the Group has achieved an aggregate net profit of RMB801
million.

Although faced with a volatile market environment, the
Group further improved its profit margin and maintained
a strong position in the global industry. Attributed to the
growing innovative product business and an improving
product portfolio, the gross profit margin for 2016 reached
30.1%, representing an increase of 3.7 percentage points as
compared to the preceding year. Additionally, the net profit
margin was recorded at 14.7%, representing an increase of
0.3 percentage points as compared to 2015.

The Group pays close attention to the interests of
shareholders as a whole and is committed towards maximizing
shareholders’ return. The Group was honored with the “Best
Shareholders’ Return” award in the 2016 Golden Hong Kong
Stock Award Competition, co-sponsored by China’s financial
data service provider, TONGHUASHUN and Hong Kong stock
market’s financial news platform, ZHITONG CAIING. This
award recognized the Group's adequate profit and consistent
dividend policy. The Board proposed to declare a final dividend
of HK7.0 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB6.2 cents) per
ordinary share (HK11.0 cents in 2015) and a special dividend
of HK6.0 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB5.3 cents)
per ordinary share (HK4.0 cents in 2015) in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2016, arriving at the annual dividend
ratio of 61.3%. If the proposal is approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
the aggregate dividend paid since its IPO in 2013 to the year
2016 would be HK46.8 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB41.7 cents) per ordinary share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWR D@

Focusing on secure payment and consolidating
market share

A strict focus and specialization in secure payment technology
summarizes the Group’s successful experience over the past
two decades. Over the past several years, concepts like virtual
economy and virtual finance have generated a great deal of
industry noise, some of which were founded on speculation
and could potentially be associated with great risk. The
Group persists its judgment of anchoring secure payment
as a core element of the financial industry as it considers
the application of internet technologies shall fundamentally
abide by the objective pattern of finance. This understanding
helps the Group navigate their investments and implement
product research and development and business expansion
systematically with basis. Towards the end of 2016, the return
of China’s financial industry towards an orderly manner was a
validation of the Group’s predictions.

The Group maintained its leading market position in 2016 and
was ranked the first in China UnionPay’s annual shipment for
the fourth consecutive year since its IPO. In the Nilson Report
of August 2016, the Group maintained its position as the
fourth largest global player in terms of market share and was
the third largest global player in terms of dual-interface card
shipments.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEBERWR D@

3.

Maintaining a stable and innovative payment
diversification strategy

In maintaining a steady forward momentum and the pursuit
of profitability, the Group accelerated the development of
its innovative platforms and services adhering to its payment
diversification strategy.

In October 2016, the Group's innovative Fintech Cloud
platform, GCaa$S, was introduced at The Computing
Conference hosted by Alibaba. A breakthrough in secure
payment industry eco-systems, GCaaS integrates four key
modules: Cloud Operations, Cloud Lab, Cloud Payment and
Cloud TSM (Trusted Service Management), enabling a one-
stop solution for e-commerce, data task processing and
smart card applications. These services are targeted at global
card issuers, merchants and cardholders and offer one-stop-
shop capabilities such as e-commerce, integrated business
management, centralized data task processing as well as smart
card application services.

The Group has also continued to progressively develop
its wearable product lines to cover payment jewelry, GPS
payment watches and payment wristbands. In October 2016,
the Group’s luxury GPS payment watch was featured at the
Shanghai International Marathon, providing marathon runners
with a brand-new experience that brings together sports
detection and convenient secure payment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE W R DM )

OUTLOOK

With respect to the future prospects, the Group remains cautiously
optimistic.

In the next three to five years, China’s economic growth may
continue to slow down. Due to the high level of debts rates,
enhanced cost control mechanism will likely be implemented by
the entire banking industry. In addition, the high rate of new card
issuance will eventually begin to taper off as the impact of financial
IC card migration progresses. In short term, the Group anticipates
that it will face a challenging market environment. However, in long
term, the Group remains confident in the stable growth of secure
payment market both in China and the rest of the world.

The Group firmly believes that innovation in Fintech will be a strong
driving force for the evolution of the financial industry. However,
innovation that focuses purely on the merits of technology at
the expense of ignoring the core principles of finance will soon
be relegated by the market. The Group will strictly adhere to the
two key financial payment tenets, namely security and cost when
capitalizing on its advantages in Cloud and loT (Internet of Things)
technologies to drive the Group’s continuous growth.

Smart secure payment solutions will be the global payment
industry’s mainstream development vehicle. Currently, smart secure
payment technology is undoubtedly the safest payment method,
distinguished by its cost-efficiency and wide acceptance globally. A
number of mature financial markets such as the United States and
Canada have exemplified the dominant position occupied by smart
secure payment technologies. The 2016 North-America payment
behavior report published by Accenture stated that smart secure
payment services enabled by debit cards and credit cards will still
be in a commanding position and that the frequency of use of
the credit card will only increase. Through the development in the
past several decades, the smart secure payment sector is now in its
golden age and will continue to grow along the path of advancing
innovative technologies. This will contribute stable returns for the
Group in the foreseeable future. The Group will consolidate its
existing competitiveness in smart secure payment to fully capitalize
on the returns offered by the industry’s development.

20 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEENWR D (&

Third-party payment services in China went through a period
of discorderly development over the last few years and took
advantages of the differing regulatory policies (deposit reserves
were not required, for example). As the market progressed in 2016,
stricter and more rational regulatory policies were put in place
to eradicate the regulatory difference. The development of the
financial payment industry going forward will certainly be more
regulatory-guided and steady. Smart secure payment and Internet
third-party payment will embark on a new journey together on same
starting line, to build a framework of cooperation and synergy that
boosts the sustainable evolution of the payment industry.

Favorable opportunities still exist for the smart secure payment
sector in 2017. Fulfilling its commitment to the World Trade
Organization, China has now completely opened the clearing
house market. China UnionPay is now welcoming new domestic
and worldwide entrants into the market. It is estimated that a new
banking card clearing house will be put into official operation in
2017. The Group believes that the newly-established clearing house
will drive China’s smart secure payment industry forward, from
dual-logo card replacements to newly-issued cards and pre-paid
cards etc.

The consumer financing market in China is now growing
aggressively, presenting enormous market potential and becoming
a new area of growth for China’s banking industry. Having
experienced decades of development, China’s credit card industry
has matured progressively in terms of product design, risk control
and market promotion and will surely be chosen by banks in
China as a key tool to explore the consumer finance market. The
credit card market in China is now welcoming a favorable policy
environment. The new policies of the China credit card industry
implemented in 2017 will change the traditional operation model
for credit cards in China and the government is also encouraging
piloting schemes of banking institutions to establish independent
credit card companies. It can be predicted that the credit card
industry will embark on a trend of fast-growing opportunities,
which will contribute to the Group’s growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE W R DM )

STRATEGIC IMPLEMENTATION

The Group will promote strategic implementation focusing on three
aspects as highlighted below.

1. Consolidating core business competitiveness

The Group will continue to accelerate innovation along its
core business to facilitate improvements in data processing,
geographical positioning and delivery models etc. It will also
seek to develop multi-channel and multi-model cooperation
in order to improve overall competitiveness in the industry.
Additionally, the Group will focus on strengthening its
integration with both upstream and downstream industries
supply chain to reduce costs and improve efficiency in respect
of operational procedures and services. At the same time, the
Group will seek to improve the latent value of its products
and services through technological refinement, new product
launches and new model introductions to consolidate the
Group’s competitiveness.

The Group will also continue to develop towards implementing
automated operational intelligence. Deployment of
manpower-free automated production lines and inspection
systems helps optimize human resources costs. At present,
the Group has completed the basic digitization of information
across its entire operation process in accordance with the
Group’s Made in China 2025 (Industry 4.0) plan. For 2017,
the Group will seek to execute the second stage of the GMES
(Goldpac Manufacturing Execution System).

In January 2017, the Group successfully won the bidding
in respect of the land use right of a parcel of land for the
permitted land use of new industry related and covering an
area of approximately 21,000 square meters situated in the
west of Goldpac Tech Park. In 2017, the Group will seek to
construct an Asia’s leading Fintech and data service center to
serve as the foundation of the Group’s medium-to-long term
development.

22 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEBERWR D@

Accelerating innovation in payment
diversification

The Group has identified the acceleration of payment
diversification as one of its priorities for 2017. In light of
this target, the Group has established a new Innovation
Business Unit that comprises specialized marketing and sales
teams. These steps are intended to ensure that there is an
organizational structure supporting the growth of this key
area of the business.

The development of the GCaa$S platform, smart secure
equipment and system solutions will feature heavily in 2017.
Working on the GCaa$ platform will aim to explore synergies
with the Group’s loT business from the Cloud Lab, Cloud
Payment and Cloud TSM perspective. Smart secure equipment,
which includes the SuperCOS and wearables, now constitute
complete product lines that meet the varied demands of
different customer segments and may encounter faster
growth in 2017. Solutions utilizing the “one-card pass” (—
+3) in the prototype phases and incorporating block chain
technologies will enhance payment security by factoring in
identity authentication and thus create a new secure payment
paradigm. This will bring forth new opportunities in the fields
of smart communities, smart cities, smart tourism, smart
transportation and smart logistics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWR D@
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Accelerating overseas expansion

In response to the China government’s “The Belt and Road”
initiative, the Group has continued to focus on overseas
business expansion. It has been developing opportunities
with China UnionPay as well as other Chinese banking
institutions and has stepped up preparations for technology,
human resources, product and solutions etc. in anticipation
of upcoming opportunities. At the end of 2016, the Group
purchased an office property in Hong Kong for use as its
headquarters for the Group’s overseas business expansion. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group’s products and services were
delivered into 23 countries and regions.

The Group's overseas expansion will focus on three aspects.
The first is to work in sync with China UnionPay’s overseas
strategies. The Group will develop localized products and
platforms to fully tap into the market potential in Southeast
Asia and enhance market share in Bangladesh, Indonesia,
Malaysia, Pakistan and Philippines. The second is to capitalize
on the successful experience with the China national IC
chip roll-out to seek business opportunities arising from
the China national IC industry’s global development. The
Group will strive to open the doors to the market for foreign
countries via China national IC chips. The last is to deliver the
Group’s industry leading technology platforms, managerial
experiences and operations models via merging, acquisition
and partnerships.

In 2017, the Group will seek expansion opportunities in
overseas markets strategically, first in Southeast Asia and then
expanding out towards the rest of Asia, Africa and Europe. It
will keep a close watch on developing markets to ensure that
it is in a strong position to capture growth when the market is
ready.

Looking towards 2017, the financial industry in China will
continue its rational return to steady growth. Although
challenges do exist, the Group is confident in its preparations
for the coming years. Creating a stable and sustainable
return for shareholders is a core philosophy for the Group
and achieving excellent performance is a commitment that is
shared across the entire management team and staffs. The
Group will continue to strive and achieve even greater value
for its shareholders.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2016

= IR INRR B K

ERERPBEBNT—%—K]818E
o ANEEE AR BE A B8R B RN A B
IRITEMBIMNER K - BiRHRE
Sh - TEREMAB CEm - ARES
FTHEMTEEER S NE - Al
me) » BEMHBEE - 2016F K © &
SEEEAEBESTIE  EARKAR
SEEINEBHRRNEE - H£2016
F12A318 » AEEBKEZ K231
B R AN [ 4R E m AN AR o

REBBIIMERBEAG LN =5 -
F-RETEATERENEIIE
R HABEAMICERMES  TOE
RRETSEFHROTHEN - BHIER
THEHMA - e - BRADR - BE
A - FRESFENMBENE - £
RENASEFEGH AREREBH
RINER  REZEFECHEXS
SMEROBEEEE - UPBREH TR
BN TIHEAM - F=ZZBBR
BHE  GEBHZEA - AEINE
EAEBEAATERALEDORIMF
A EELRMESER -

20179 - ARERFHREINTHER
BB LS - REE - M 3F
M- BN EERAAEMRD @ 8
1R BRI, » TSR TRy B
K E B

RBE2017F AESREEGE—D
CIFEM - BREER - #HAREKA
GE EBERAEEHRARNERTR
b BIRRAERTE HFENDR
ERAEESBONES  MIFE%EN
EAERAEEEEREM2EE TN
HERL - AEBB—WBEE - HF
BREEXELHBEEMME -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEBERWR D@

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Thursday, 18 May 2017, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 May 2017. The register
of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 15 May
2017 to Thursday, 18 May 2017, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2 June 2017. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 5
June 2017 to Wednesday, 7 June 2017, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. Subject to
shareholders’ approval of the proposed dividends at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 18 May
2017, the dividends will be paid on Friday, 30 June 2017 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 7 June 2017.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 4 December 2013 with net proceeds from the
global offering of approximately RMB975 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). As at 31
December 2016, the Company utilized approximately RMB629
million of the net proceeds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWR D@

An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the initial & 1F2016512 A31 8 1k * ¥R AR E R
public offering and the unused amount as at 31 December 2016 is  SFRIBFER LTSGR 2 OTWOT
set out below:
Utilized Unutilized
amount amount
as at 31 as at 31
December December
% of net Net 2016 2016
proceeds proceeds #HE2016F HZE20169F
& & 12A31H 12A31H
Exadll g CEFERAsE REAE
(HKD million) (HKD million) (HKD million)
Research and development of new A& 37 T M AR 1%
products and services 35.0% 341,113 254,921 86,192
Expansion to production facilities, — IEFZRAERE LKL
upgrades and other improvements  Ei#ER A A &
to existing card production and EUN S5 559
personalisation service facilities 35.0% 341,113 150,267 190,846
Financing future strategic FRARREE FHR AR
alliances with complementary BEEMEES
companies 10.0% 97,461 32,120 65,341
Further strengthening presence #E— S NSRTER BIEAD
in existing markets outside RAEMSHEEERIH
the PRC 10.0% 97,461 94,553 2,908
Working capital and other general R EEES K
corporate purposes HE—RAGRE 10.0% 97,461 97,461 -
Total A&t 100.0% 974,609 629,322 345,287

The balances of the net proceeds were deposited in banking
account. The Company has utilized and will utilize the net proceeds
pursuant to the purposes and the proportions as disclosed in the

prospectus of the Company dated 22 November 2013.

26 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

By assuming a conservative financial management attitude, the
Group continued to maintain the healthy financial position.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's aggregate amount of bank
balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged bank deposits
reached approximately RMB1,763.1 million (2015: approximately
RMB1,511.7 million), of which approximately RMB892.5 million
(2015: approximately RMB768.9 million) was denominated in RMB,
representing approximately 50.6%, and approximately RMB870.6
million (2015: approximately RMB742.8 million) was denominated
in USD and HKD, representing approximately 49.4%.

The aggregate dividend of approximately RMB134.7 million was
paid by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.
(2015: approximately RMB65.6 million).

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group had no
bank loans.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade receivables was
approximately RMB340.0 million (2015: approximately RMB492.9
million). It is the industry practice that settlement of trade
receivables peaks around the end of year.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group’s total current assets
amounted to RMB2,145.4 million (2015: approximately RMB2,139.4
million), remaining almost flat to that as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current ratio was 3.0 (2015:
2.8), representing a high liquidity.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's gearing ratio (gearing ratio is
equivalent to total debt divided by total assets as at the end of the
year) was 27.9% (2015: 30.4%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (&)

CURRENCY EXPOSURE

In terms of currency exposure, the majority of the Group’s sales
were denominated in RMB, USD and HKD while the majority of
operating expenses and purchases were denominated in RMB with
portions were in USD and HKD. Taking advantage of the benefit of
effective centralized management and supervision, the Group pays
attention to USD currency exchange rate’s fluctuation and reviews
currency exposure periodically.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s capital
expenditure was approximately RMB11.1 million. (2015:
approximately RMB49.7 million). The capital expenditure includes
expenses in fixed assets, intangible assets and deferred assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The aggregate capital commitment of the Group as at 31 December
2016 was approximately RMB146.2 million (2015: approximately
RMB4.5 million), as a result of the Group’s acquisition of 13th floor
of Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre on No. 56 Gloucester
Road, Hong Kong (“the Hong Kong Headquarters”). The total cost
of the property together with transaction costs was approximately
RMB168.5 million.

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, bank deposits of approximately RMB139.7
million (2015: approximately RMB122.1 million) was pledged to
secure the bills payables and bank guarantee.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high levels of environmental
and social standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has established an environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
management team to manage, monitor, recommend and report
on environmental and social aspects. An ESG report is prepared
with reference to Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
(Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide) as
disclosed on page 89 to 98 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEENWR D (&

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
encourages its employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees. The
Group also enhances cooperation with its suppliers and provides
high quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
continued and sustainable development.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 1,642 employees (as
at 31 December 2015: 1,708), with a decrease of 66 employees
compared with that as at 31 December 2015. This was attributed
to the decrease in front-line operational employees as a result
of the 2i Integration (Integration of Information Technology and
Industrialization) and intelligent operation.

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important assets.
In addition to offering competitive remuneration and welfare
packages, the Group is also committed to providing specialized and
challenging career development and training programs. Generally,
a salary review is conducted annually. The Group also adopted the
Pre-IPO share option scheme, the share option scheme and the
share award scheme to motivate prospective employees. Apart
from basic remuneration, for employees in the PRC, the Group
makes contributions towards employee mandatory social security,
pensions, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and
medical and unemployment insurance in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group also provides
full coverage of housing provident fund contributions as required by
local regulations in the PRC. For overseas employees, the Group also
make contributions towards relevant insurance scheme as required
by the local regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESRSREERR

DIRECTORS

==

The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including four executive ZEEE@MmNLEBAK @ BIENELHTE
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent = - —ZIEHITE S - = BB IEHITE
non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain = - LN REARZESEMN -

information relating to the Directors:

Name Age
e FiR

Position in the Group

BB

Executive Directors

HITES

LU Run Ting 62
HOU Ping 56
& ¥

LU Runyi 59
EEA

LU Xiaozhong 48
B/ R

Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Christophe Jacques PAGEZY 58
TING Tao | 54
TiE—

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFIITES

MAK Wing Sum Alvin 64
EKER
ZHU Lijun 63
KRIF
LIU John Jianhua 66
Elj=s=
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Non-executive Director

FNTES

Non-executive Director

FRNTER

Independent Non-executive Director
BIUIFMITES
Independent Non-executive Director
BIUFMITES
Independent Non-executive Director
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (EBE), aged 62, is the chairman and an
executive Director of the Company, and the founder of the Group.
He was first appointed as Director on 10 December 2004 and was
designated as an executive Director with effect from 15 November
2013. Chairman LU is primarily responsible for the overall strategic
planning and overseeing the general management of the Group.
He has over 25 years of experience in financial card industry and
was honored as the finalist award of CNBC Asia Business Leaders
Award in October 2015. Chairman LU has been the chairman of
the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries, Goldpac Datacard
Solutions Company Limited (“Goldpac Datacard”) and Goldpac
Limited (formerly named as “Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai)
Limited”), since 2011 and also has been the director of Goldpac
Fintech Singapore Private Limited and Goldpac Investment Limited,
the Company’s subsidiaries, since 2016. He was the managing
director and a Director of the Group from 2004 to 2011 and also
served as the vice chairman and president of both Goldpac Datacard
and Goldpac Limited from 2000 to 2011 and 1995 to 2011
respectively.

Prior to the establishment of the Group in 1995, Chairman LU had
interest in Goldpac International (Holding) Limited ("GIHL"), the
Company's controlling shareholder since 1993. Chairman LU also
served as various management positions at the subsidiaries of the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China prior to the establishment
of GIHL in 1993. He currently also serves as the chairman of GIHL
and a standing director of the Information Technology Professional
Committee of the China Association for Labor Studies (71 B 44 & £2
eZBLEEEEE). Chairman LU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 2004. Chairman LU had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Chairman LU is currently holding 100% interest of GIHL, the
Company’s controlling shareholder. Chairman LU is the elder
brother of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENENREERE @)

Mr. HOU Ping (£¥), aged 56, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2011. He was first appointed as a Director on 30 August
2011, and was designated as an executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the Group. Mr. HOU has over 30 years
of experience in the banking industry, including over 15 years of
experience in the card industry. He has been a Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company since 2011. He has served
as a director of Goldpac Datacard and a director of Goldpac Limited
since 2011 and a director of Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private
Limited since 2016.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card
centre at Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to
Huaxia Bank as chief executive officer of the credit card centre
from 2006 to 2011. Mr. HOU served various positions at Bank of
China group and subsequently, BOC Credit Card (International)
Limited since 1999, including as deputy general manager of BOC
Credit Card (International) Limited in Hong Kong from 1999 to
2004. He also currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of the Huijin Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd (}'GE &R
R B R A R]) (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 300561). Mr. HOU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Baptist University in
December 2003. Saved as disclosed herein, Mr. HOU had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi (BJ814), aged 59, is an executive Director and a
senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in
1995. He was first appointed as a Director in December 2004, and
was designated as an executive Director with effect from November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the sales
department of the Group. Mr. LU Runyi, has approximately 20
years of experience in the financial cards industry. He has been a
senior vice president of the Group since 2004 and was a Director
of the Company from 2004 to 2010. He has also been a director of
Goldpac Datacard and of Goldpac Limited since 2011. He currently
also serves as a Director of GIHL. Mr. LU Runyi had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Chairman LU, who is the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Mr. LU Xiaozhong (E/N&), aged 48, is an executive Director
and a senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group
in 1995. He was first appointed as a Director on 21 May 2013,
and was designated as an executive Director with effect from 15
November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the management
of the corporate business, quality and security department of the
Group. Mr. LU has approximately 20 years of experience in the card
industry. He has been the senior vice president, general manager of
the corporate business management department and chief officer of
the information security of Goldpac Limited since 2012. Since 2011
to 2014, he acted as the Director of Goldpac Limited and Goldpac
Datacard. He also served various management positions at Goldpac
Limited, from 1995 to 2012.

Mr. LU has been an external expert consultant of China UnionPay
since 2010. He served as a member of the Economic Crime
Consultancy expert team of the Zhuhai Police Bureau. Through
these appointments, he has accumulated relevant experience
in compliance, quality control and confidential information
management and intellectual property right of customers. Mr.
LU graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University in the
P.R.C. (/8% B KE) with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in
Polymer Materials in July 1990 and received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 2006.

Mr. LU had not been a director of any other listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY, aged 58, is a non-executive
Director, and joined the Group in 2009. He was first appointed as a
Director on 23 March 2009 and was designated as a non-executive
Director with effect from 15 November 2013. Mr. PAGEZY was the
chairman of the Company from 2009 to 2011. Mr. PAGEZY was a
board representative nominated by Gemalto N.V. (“Gemalto”) onto
the Board, which is a major supplier and a substantial shareholder of
the company.

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY is currently the co-CEO of
PROVE & RUN, a limited company incorporated under the law
of France. Mr. PAGEZY served as the executive vice president
of Gemalto, responsible for corporate projects from 2007 to 6
January 2014. Gemalto is a company incorporated under the laws
of Netherlands, whose shares are listed and traded on New York
Stock Exchange Euronext Amsterdam and New York Stock Exchange
Euronext Paris respectively. Mr. PAGZY graduated from the Ecole
Supérieure d'Electricité with a Diploma in Engineering in July 1981
and from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology with a Master
of Science degree in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science in
June 1982. Saved as disclosed herein, Mr. PAGEZY had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. TING Tao | (T #—), aged 54, is a non-executive Director, and
joined the Group in 2013. He was first appointed as a Director on 4
July 2013 and was designated as a non-executive Director with
effect from 15 November 2013. Mr. TING Tao | was a board
representative nominated by BOCI Investment Limited (“BOCI
Investment”) onto the Board. He also acted as the Director of
Goldpac Limited and Goldpac Datacard from 2013 to 2014.

Mr. TING was the head of the private equity division of BOC
International Holdings Limited and was in charge of the private
equity investment and fund management business before his
resignation in February 2017. Mr. TING received a Master of
Business Administration degree from the New York University in
the United States in 1993. Saved as disclosed herein, Mr. TING had
not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (7 #) (also known as Mr. MAK Wing
Sum), aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director. He joined
the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director.

Mr. MAK is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hong Kong Television Network Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1137), I.T Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 999), Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 590) and Lai Fung Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1125). Mr. MAK is a member
of Hong Kong Housing Society and a member of its audit committee
and special committee on investment. Mr. MAK, after working in
Citibank for over 26 years, went into his retirement in April 2012
where he last served as the head of markets and banking for
Citibank Hong Kong. Whilst at Citibank, he has held various senior
positions, managing the regional global asset management business
and financial control for North Asia.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been
a Chartered Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants since September 1979, a Chartered Professional
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
since November 2012 and currently also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Save as disclosed
herein, Mr. MAK had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. ZHU Lijun, (532 E), aged 63, is an independent non-executive
Director. He joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Mr. ZHU has been the vice president of China United Network
Communications Limited (F BB A B L BERHER QD F)
(formerly known as China Netcom (Group) Corporation Limited (#
BI493% (2@ ) B R A 5]) since 2006 till March 2014. He was also a
representative of the 10th National People’s Congress held in 2003.

Mr. ZHU received a Bachelor of Economics degree from the Jilin
University (F#AE) in July 1997, a Master of International
Management degree from the Australian National University in July
2004 and a Doctor of Management degree from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2008. Mr. ZHU had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Z1#%£), aged 66, is an independent non-
executive Director. He joined the Group on 15 November 2013,
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. LIU has been the chairman of the Academy of International
Transport of the City University of Hong Kong since 2012. Mr.
LIU served as the director of the Center for Transport, Trade and
Financial Studies and the visiting professor at the department of
management science of the City University of Hong Kong since
2011 to December 2015 and 2016 respectively. Mr. LIU has been
a visiting professor of Faculty of Business Administration of Beijing
Institute of Technology, Zhuhai since 1 January 2017.

Mr. LIU received a Master in Engineering degree in March 1982
from Huazhong Engineering University (284 T27) (now known as
Huazhong University of Science & Technology (F£F Bl K E)). He
received a Master of Science degree major in Engineering-Economic
Systems from Stanford University in the United States in June 1983
and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Industrial Engineering from
Pennsylvania State University in August 1986 in the United States.
Mr. LIU had not been a director of any other listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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Name Gender Age Position

%% 33 i B

WU Sigiang Male 44 Chief operating officer

RER ES BREZE

LI Yijin Female 46 Chief financial officer & Company Secretary
5 L°8 BREVBERARWE

LI Jun Male 55 Chief technology officer

33 E: RIS

Mr. WU Sigiang (& 23&), aged 44, is the chief operating officer
of the Company, and joined the Group in 2001. He is primarily
responsible for the overall operation of the Group. Mr. WU has
approximately 16 years of experience in the card industry. He has
been the chief operating officer of the Company since 2011. He was
a manager of the production division, vice general manager of the
operation division, general manger of the production management
division of Goldpac Limited from 2001 to 2011 respectively and has
been the chief operating officer of Goldpac Limited since 2011. He
also served as a manager of the procurement division of Goldpac
Limited since 2004. Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong
Mechanics University (BR#E#MZFT) (now part of Guangdong
University of Technology (E®R L% K2) with a Bachelor of
Mechatronics degree in July 1993. Mr. WU had not been a director
of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past
three years.

Ms. LI Yijin (Z25#), aged 46, is the chief financial officer of
the Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is primarily
responsible for the management of the accounting and finance
department of the Group. Ms. LI has approximately 25 years of
experience in the accounting and financial reporting matters. She
was the financial controller of the Group from 2004 to 2012 and
has been the chief financial officer of the Group since 2012.

Ms. LI received an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in
November 2012. Ms. LI has been a member of CPA (Certified Public
Accountants) Australia since October 2004 and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 2013. Ms. LI had
not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.
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Mr. LI Jun (ZE), aged 55, is the chief technology officer of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2013. He is primarily responsible
for the management of the technical solutions department and
R&D department of the Group. Mr. LI has approximately 18 years
of experience in the technology related industry. He has been the
chief technology officer of the Company since January 2013. He has
also been the chief technology officer of both Goldpac Limited and
Goldpac Datacard since January 2013.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI joined Giesecke & Devrient
GmbH as engineer in 1997 and from 1999 to 2012 served as the
director for security equipment in Giesecke & Devrient (China)
Information Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. LI graduated from the Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications (1t 5 #5 8 £63) with
a degree in radio communication and received a master degree
in engineering from Universitat-Gesamthochschule Paderborn in
Germany and a master certificate in project management from the
George Washington University through its program in Beijing in July
1983, June 1997 and May 2005 respectively. Mr. LI had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin (Z5#), aged 46, is the company secretary of the
Group, and joined the Group in 2001. She is primarily responsible
for the secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Senior Management” above for the biography of
Ms. LI.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no changes in
information of Directors required to be disclosed for the year
ended 31 December 2016 pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
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The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October 2004, the Company
was publicly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
4 December 2013. Primarily operated through its subsidiaries
in the PRC and Hong Kong, the Company is specialised in
delivering embedded software and secure payment products for
global customers and leveraging innovative Fintech to provide
personalisation service, system platforms and other total solutions
for customers in a wide business range including finance,
government, healthcare, transportation and retails. The Company
is the exclusive secure payment products supplier in the PRC, which
is certified by all six of the world-leading credit card organisations
of China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard, American Express, JCB and
Diners’ Club.

As a global leading secure payment total solution supplier,
the Company is actively involved in drafting and formulating
of industrial standards and criterion. To drive the innovation
by customers’ diversified demands and evolving front-line
technologies, the Company watches the cutting-edge technologies
trends with the closest interests, covering internet banking, mobile
payment, loT, to reinforce the Company’s leading industrial position
and boost the whole industry’s evolution. Motivated by the strong
R&D aptitudes and affluent practical experiences, the Company
was actively involved in numerous significant industrial events
and projects, including China’s secure and reliable financial I1C
card chip promotion project, the first EMV (Europay, MasterCard
and Visa) projects in Hong Kong and the PRC, the first provincial
social security card project, the first financial social security card
project, the first citizen card project and the first healthcare card
project in the PRC. Committed to essential sustainable development
philosophies of delivering value and innovation, the Company is
fully engaged in promoting the wider and in-depth application of
smart secure payment technologies, with its leading technologies,
preeminent qualities and superior service, to provide people
worldwide with the safer, easier and more convenient payment
experience.

The principal activities of the Group for the year 2016 are set out
in the Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 151 to
page 153 of this Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year 2016 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income of page 108 of this Annual Report.

A final dividend of HK7.0 cents (2015: HK11.0 cents) and a special
dividend of HK6.0 cents (2015: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31December 2016 has been proposed by
the Board of Directors.

PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year 2016, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and details of the Group’s principal activities are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 14 to page 29 of this Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Thursday, 18 May 2017, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 May 2017. The register
of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 15 May
2017 to Thursday, 18 May 2017, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2 June 2017. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
5 June 2017 to Wednesday, 7 June 2017, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. Subject
to shareholders’ approval of the proposed dividend at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 18 May
2017, the dividend will be paid on Friday, 30 June 2017 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 7 June 2017.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to the payment solutions
business and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarized below.

(i)

(i)

The financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the
consumer financial services industry and
trends

As the Group relies on financial institutions, government
agencies (such as social security, public health and
transportation agencies) and other organisations that issue
financial cards as its customers or potential customers,
the financial performance of the Group depends on the
future growth of the consumer financial services industry
and trends in that industry towards greater outsourcing of
certain functions such as the production and personalisation
of financial cards. The consumer financial services industry
is characterised by rapid launches of new products and
services, continuous technological advancement, evolving
industry standards and changing customer needs, all of which
translate to shorter life cycles for new products and services.
Organisations that issue financial cards, such as the Group’s
customers, may face difficulty in anticipating changes in
consumer tastes, preferences and requirements and designing
financial products to meet such changes, which could lead to
a lower demand for financial cards and in turn decrease these
organisations’ demand for the products and services, which
may adversely affect the financial results of the Group.

As a supplier to financial institutions and
government agencies, the Group is subject
to rigorous industry standards and/or
government regulations

Many of the industry organisations, government regulatory
agencies and other bodies to which the Group’s customers
belong or are subject to have issued their own sets of
standards and criteria relating to the facilities and products
of payment solutions manufacturers and providers, which
the Group must satisfy in order to be eligible to supply
products and services to these customers. For example, as
required by the Group’s financial institution customers, the
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Group has obtained certifications from all six of the leading
worldwide payment card organisations (VISA, MasterCard,
American Express, China UnionPay, JCB, and Diners Club)
with respect to the Group’s card manufacturing and
personalisation services. To maintain such certifications, the
Group is subject to rigorous periodic audits by these payment
card organisations to review the Group's compliance with
their standards and criteria. The Group makes significant
investments in order to meet these standards and criteria,
which vary depending on the organisation or body, including
investments required to satisfy changes adopted from time
to time by these organisations and bodies in their respective
standards and criteria. Further investments to meet these
standards and criteria may be costly, and if the Group is unable
to continue to meet these standards and criteria, the Group
may become ineligible to provide products and services that
have constituted in the past an important part of the Group'’s
revenue and profitability.

(iii) The Group faces significant competition in

44

each of the markets in which it operates,
which could affect its profitability

The Group’s market position depends upon its ability to
anticipate and proactively deal with changes in economic and
market conditions and evolving industry trends, as well as the
following factors: introduction of new or superior products
and services or more advanced technologies, adoption of
more flexible pricing strategies by the Group’s competitors
and changes in customers’ needs and preferences. The Group
cannot assure that its current or potential competitors will not
produce the same or similar products or products of a better
quality and/or provide similar or higher quality services at the
same or lower prices than the prices at which the Group’s
products and services are provided.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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The Group’s competitors may also react more quickly to new
or emerging technologies or changes in customer preferences.
In addition, the Group may face greater than expected
downward pricing pressure as a result of possible price
competition by competitors seeking to stimulate demand in
order to maintain or increase market share. Such competition
could adversely affect the Group’s results of operations and
business prospects. Any adverse changes in the Group’s
competitive environment could cause a reduction in the sales
quantity, its market share, or the sales price of its products,
which would lower the Group’s profitability. As a supplier
to the major financial institutions in China, the Group’s
performance and profitability may be adversely affected if
its customers, when faced with operational difficulties and
decreasing profit margins, seek to demand more favourable
trading terms from the Group in relation to price and credit
period. The Group’s performance and profitability will also be
adversely affected if any of its customers faces cost control or
cash flow problems due to such operational difficulties.

(iv) Fluctuations in consumer spending and

financial services in the PRC may affect
the Group’s business and financial
performance

During the past few years, the Group derived most of the
Group's revenue from operations in the PRC. The Group's
sales and growth are dependent on consumer spending
and consumer banking, which in turn depend on continued
improvement of macroeconomic conditions, in Asia generally
but in the PRC in particular. There are many factors affecting
the level of consumer spending and consumer banking,
including but not limited to, interest rates, currency exchange
rates, recession, inflation, deflation, political uncertainty,
taxation, stock market performance, unemployment levels
and general consumer confidence. In addition, the Group
believes that the Group’s historical growth rates were largely
dependent on the general growth of the PRC economy.
The Group can provide no assurance that the PRC economy
will continue to grow at historical rates, or at all, and any
slowdowns or declines in the PRC economy or consumer
spending or consumer banking may adversely affect the
Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects.
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(v) Adverse changes in the PRC economic,

46

political and social conditions as well
as laws and government policies, may
adversely affect the Group’s business,
financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects

The economic, political and social conditions in the PRC
differ from those in more developed countries in many
respects, including structure, government involvement, level
of development, growth rate, control of foreign exchange,
capital reinvestment, allocation of resources, rate of inflation
and trade balance position. Before the adoption of its reform
and opening up policies in 1978, the PRC was primarily a
planned economy. In recent years, the PRC government has
been reforming the PRC economic system and government
structure. For example, the PRC government has implemented
economic reform and measures emphasising the utilisation
of market forces in the development of the PRC economy
in the past three decades. These reforms have resulted in
significant economic growth and social prospects. Economic
reform measures, however, may be adjusted, modified or
applied inconsistently from industry to industry or across
different regions of the country. The Group cannot predict
whether the resulting changes will have any adverse effect
on the Group's current or future business, financial condition
or results of operations. Despite these economic reforms and
measures, the PRC government continues to play a significant
role in regulating industrial development, allocation of natural
and other resources, production, pricing and management
of currency, and there can be no assurance that the PRC
government will continue to pursue a policy of economic
reform or that the direction of reform will continue to be
market friendly.
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The Group’s ability to successfully expand its business
operations in the PRC depends on a number of factors,
including macro-economic and other market conditions, and
credit availability from lending institutions. Stricter credit or
lending policies in the PRC may affect the Group’s customers’
consumer credit or consumer banking business, and may
also affect the Group’s ability to obtain external financing,
which may reduce its ability to implement its expansion
strategies. The Group cannot assure that the PRC government
will not implement any additional measures to tighten
credit or lending standards, or that, if any such measure is
implemented, it will not adversely affect the Group’s future
results of operations or profitability. Demand for the Group’s
goods and services and its business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected by the
following factors:

o political instability or changes in social conditions of the
PRC;

. changes in laws, regulations, and administrative
directives or the interpretation thereof;

o measures which may be introduced to control inflation
or deflation; and

o changes in the rate or method of taxation.

These factors are affected by a number of variables which are
beyond the Group’s control.
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(vi) The Group’s business may be adversely

affected by the introduction of new
payment technologies

We face competition from new payment technologies, such
as mobile phone-based payment systems utilising NFC (Near
Field Communication) technology, which could reduce the
demand for financial cards as a payment method. To the
extent any new payment technologies, such as mobile phone-
based systems utilising NFC technology, reduce the demand
for our financial card products or other new products we
may introduce from time to time, including new products
arising from our research and development activities, we
may experience material and adverse effects on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(i)

48

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group
and the Group regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. The Group wants to continue
to be an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills. The Group provides pre-employment and
on-the-job training and development opportunities to its
staff members. The training programs cover areas such
as managerial skills, innovative technologies, sales and
production, customer services, quality control, workplace
ethics and training of other areas relevant to the industry.
In addition, the Group seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from its employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony.
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(ii)

Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. Aside from
basic remuneration, for all employees in PRC, the Group
provides employee mandatory social security funds, pensions,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance, medical
and employment insurance, and full coverage of housing
provident fund contributions in accordance with the applicable
laws and regulations of the PRC. For overseas employees the
Group also make contributions towards relevant insurance
schemes required by the local regulations. Meanwhile the
Group adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme to recognize and
motivate the contribution of the employees and attract
suitable personnel for the long-term growth and further
strategic expansion of the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2016, no shares have been granted or agreed to
be granted to any selected participants of the Share Award
Scheme.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of its suppliers and takes great care to ensure that
they share the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. The
Group carefully selects its suppliers and require them to satisfy
certain assessment criteria including track record, experience,
financial strength, reputation, products qualities and quality
control effectiveness. The Group also requires its suppliers to
comply with the Group's anti-bribery policy.

(iii) Clients

The Group is committed to maintain and develop its diversified
clients’ portfolio consisting of the governmental organizations,
world-leading financial institutions, transportations projects
and multinational companies. The Group maximizes client
value by offering professional and effective operation model
and innovative and differentiated products and services, to
intensify the interaction and viscosity between clients and the
Group and enhances the client experience.

(ii)
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong while the Company itself is
listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong. During the year 2016, the Group have complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year 2016 are set out on pages 111 and 113
of this annual report and in Note 39 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 201 of this Annual Report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year 2016 are set out in Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on page 164 of this Annual
Report.

BANK LOANS
The Group had no bank loan during the year 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year 2016 are set out in Note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 176 to 177 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Pursuant to the relevant rules of Hong Kong and PRC, the
Company'’s reserves available for the distribution to the shareholders
as at 31 December 2016 amounted to RMB321.3 million (31
December 2015: RMB15.6 million).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE PAST 5
YEARS

The turnover, assets and liabilities of the past 5 years of the Group
are set out in the Financial Summary on page 204 of this Annual
Report.

INCENTIVE SCHEMES
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The pre-IPO share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a
written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
on 15 November 2013 (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
for the primary purpose of recognise the contribution of
certain employees and directors made or may have made to
the growth of the Group and/or the listing of the Group on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and will expire on 3
December 2019.

At 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 30,126,000
(2015: 31,061,000), representing 3.61% (2015: 3.73%) of the
shares of the Company in issue on that day.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November 2013,
upon payment of HKD1.0 by the grantee. All the options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were granted on
19 November 2013. The exercise price of each Pre-IPO share
option of the Company is HKD2.71 per share.
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The Pre-IPO share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme of the Company may be exercised by each

grantee in the following manner:

Vesting Period
7 & A

Exercise period

1T

ARAERAFEERBRER 8 AT
BETHMERARAEEMBRENAR
AFTARRIRIA T 75 AT ERB AR

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

AITEERENRAB L

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2014

201311 H198 =
2014512 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2015

2013F11 819 &
2015512 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2016

2013F11B19B &
2016512 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2017

2013F11B19B &
2017512 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2018

2013F 11 198 =
201812 A3H

From 4 December 2014
to 3 December 2019

2014F12 H4AB &
2019412 A3H

From 4 December 2015
to 3 December 2019

2015512 4B &E
2019412 A3H

From 4 December 2016
to 3 December 2019

2016512 H4BE
2019412 A3H

From 4 December 2017
to 3 December 2019

2017512 H4B &
2019412 A3H

From 4 December 2018 to
3 December 2019

201812 F4ABZE
2019412 H3H
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Up to 20% of the options granted to such grantee
(rounded down to the nearest whole number)
FIEERENRZ20% (M THABREREINEH)

Up to 40% of the options granted to such grantee
less the options exercised (rounded down to the
nearest whole number)

Frg g e OB BT MBI ) &% 40% (AT
FAREEENEL)

Up to 60% of the options granted to such grantee
less the options exercised (rounded down to the
nearest whole number)

Frg g gt OB B B TE R BEAR I ) M & % 60% (A T~
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Up to 80% of the options granted to such grantee
less the options exercised (rounded down to the
nearest whole number)

Fg g g OR B2 BATE R BEAR I ) MU % 80% (M T~
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Such number of unexercised options granted to such
grantee
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s Pre-IPO TREBEAQNESZREEMEAEN ‘§§§
. . N 3 ML HE A E
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme held by BRAABBERBERESSE THBEIK §§§‘ﬁ
directors and employees and movements in such holding for ENEREZE2016F12A31BZ2FE —
the year ended 31 December 2016: ZEE 3 %@
C =
258
For the twelve months ended 31 December 2016 HZE20165F12A318 L+ =R o
As at As at %iﬂﬂ
1 January 31 December -%t&-
2016 2016 gé
Name R20164F Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2016F &
&8 1A1H BATE B BAXK 12A31H .
c :‘HH
Directors & it
=
S
Mr. LU Run Ting 2,960,000 — = — 2,960,000 = 3§
EFELE e _:‘52
g Sk
2ok
Mr. HOU Ping 1,200,000 = = = 1,200,000 %5%{1
EFHE L
Mr. LU Runyi 1,600,000 — = — 1,600,000 § o
3@ | Y Oy
J§/Fiﬁ Tﬁf‘ﬁi g i%‘j
» @Ml
: S §X
Mr. LU Xiaozhong 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 O s
L UN-Y X £
o o 4l
Senior management g gﬁ
€3
ERERE S58
In aggregate 9,300,000 — — — 9,300,000
At

[=IFaN

Other employees
Hitgs

In aggregate 15,001,000 (362,000) = (573,000) 14,066,000
A4t

[=1PaN

Q

5]

c

©

S 4

Sif
o

G 3z

o o

i

s

o

2

S

]
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(b)

54

The fair values of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at RMB69,935,000
(equivalent to HKD88,954,000) using the Binominal Option
Pricing pricing model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

Share price HKD4.52
Exercise price HKD2.71
Expected life 6 years
Expected volatility 46.9963%
Expected dividend yield 1.0822%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426%

Fair value per option HKD2.4250 to HKD2.4791

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB10,502,000
(2015: RMB16,868,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016
in relation to share options granted by the Company.

Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme, approved by
the shareholder’s resolution passed on 15 November 2013
(the “Share Option Scheme"), are substantially the same as
the terms of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme except that:

(i)  the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue at the date of listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange;

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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(i) the maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of offer to grant; and

(iii)  The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company at their discretion and will not be lower than
the highest of: (a) the closing price of the ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange at the offer date, which must be a
trading day; (b) the average closing price of the ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

On 7 September 2016, 20,000,000 share options were
granted to subscribe for a total of 20,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at an exercise price of HKD2.61 per share. The
closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before
the date of grant was HKD2.59. Since the Group did not
achieve certain performance targets and thus the condition for
exercise of the share options was not satisfied, all the share
options had lapsed and no share option remained outstanding
as at 31 December 2016 under the Share Option Scheme.

Assuming all options under the Share Option Scheme have
been granted, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme shall be 80,000,000,
representing approximately 9.6% of the Company’s issued
share capital as at the date of the Company’s 2016 Annual
Report.

(i) EEA—E12{E A8 HEEEL
FHZH  BTFEEK2EEADN
BT SHBRBE TR
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The following table discloses details of the share options TRIEZEREE T ANER
granted under the Share Option Scheme and movements for EREH 220165128318 IEFERME
the year ended 31 December 2016: B :
For the twelve months ended 31 December 2016 HZE20165F12A31H1E+={@A
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2016 2016
Name 7120165F Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 7120165F
=L 1818 Bl BiTHE EEd BAXM 12A318
Directors
B
Mr. HOU Ping — 600,000 — = (600,000) —
EF L
Mr. LU Runyi — 420,000 — — (420,000) —
Et s
Mr. LU Xiaozhong — 150,000 — — (150,000) —
BN RS E
Senior management
EREERE
In aggregate — 4,700,000 — — (4,700,000) —
A
Other employees
Hittfg g
In aggregate
A — 14,130,000 — — (14,130,000) —
Total = 20,000,000 = = (20,000,000) —
et

Each grantee of the share options was entitled to exercise his/
her respective share options in the following manner:

(@) conditional upon the achievement of certain
performance targets by the relevant grantees and/or
the Group, up to 1/3 (i.e. approximately 33.33%) of the
share options so granted to him/her at any time during a
period commencing from 3 April 2017 and ending on 31
December 2023;
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(b) conditional upon the achievement of certain
performance targets by the relevant grantees and/or
the Group, up to 2/3 (i.e. approximately 66.67%) of
the share options so granted to him/her less the share
options which had been exercised by him/her at any
time during a period commencing from 3 April 2018 and
ending on 31 December 2023; and

() conditional upon the achievement of certain
performance targets by the relevant grantees and/or the
Group, up to 100% of the share options so granted to
him/her less the share options which had been exercised
by him/her at any time during a period commencing from
the 3 April 2019 and ending on 31 December 2023.

The fair values of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2016 were calculated at RMB 15,463,000
(equivalent to HKD17,852,000) using the Binominal Option
Pricing pricing model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

Share price HKD2.61
Exercise price HKD2.61
Expected life 7.3 years
Expected volatility 49.86%
Expected dividend yield 4.21%
Risk-free interest rate 0.72%
Fair value per option HKD0.8926

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

(b) EHHEBEAZAR SAEEZE
EEREBZEUER  22=H
2 = (BN#66.67%) 72 E % T
ERECITEBREMGEHE
2R ERER B20185F4
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BEERBEEZENER 236
100% 2 B TREREREE T
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(c¢) Share Award Scheme

58

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from 11
December 2015. The objective of the Share Award Scheme are
to (i) align the interests of any employee, adviser, consultant,
agent, contractor, client or supplier of any member of the
Group whom the directors in its sole discretion considers
may contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate the contribution
of the Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of the
Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
(the “Trustee”) to administer and hold the Company’s shares
before they are vested and transferred to the Participants. The
Trustee purchases the Company’s shares being awarded from
the open market with funds provided by the Company by way
of contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 10,814,000
ordinary shares of the Company have been acquired
at an aggregate cost of HKD29,776,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB25,038,000) (2015: 27,000 ordinary
shares at an aggregate cost of HKD91,000, equivalent to
approximately RMB74,000). As at 31 December 2016, no
shares have been granted or agreed to be granted to the
Participants (2015: nil). There are 10,841,000 shares (2015:
27,000 shares) held by the Trustee and RMB1,342,000 (2015:
RMB8,302,000) was placed to the Trustee as prepayments at
the end of reporting period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year 2016 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Xiaozhong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
Mr. TING Tao |

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Mr. ZHU Lijun
Mr. LIU John Jianhua

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 30 to 40 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of
the Company during the year 2016 and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited
Mr. LIU Xuhui

Goldpac Investment Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. YAP Mung Hong
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years, which shall be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the executive Director or the Company. Each of non-
executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years. Each of independent non-
executive directors has signed an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years. The appointment of each
Director is subject to the provisions of appointment and retirement
of directors under the Articles of Association of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
LU Run Ting, Mr. LU Runyi and Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
retired from the Board and were re-elected in the Annual General
Meeting on 28 May 2014, and they will retire from the Board at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on 18 May 2017. Mr. LU
Run Ting, Mr. LU Runyi and Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY will
offer themselves for re-election. Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. LU Xiaozhong
and Mr. TING Tao | retired from the Board and were re-elected in
the Annual General Meeting on 21 May 2015. Mr. MAK Wing Sum
Alvin, Mr. ZHU Lijun and Mr. LIU John Jianhua retired from the
Board and were re-elected at the Annual General Meeting on 19
May 2016.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. ZHU
Lijun and Mr. LIU John Jianhua, the confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has duly reviewed the confirmation of independence
of each of these Directors. The Company considers that the
independent non-executive Directors had been independent from
the date of their appointment to 31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors
and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares of equity
derivatives and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (all within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO") disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules were detailed below:

Interests in Shares

ESNEEITENER

REE2016F12A31HILZFE - EFM
BEANTEEAARREREEZE(EXR
BHERBEEN ([ F5RBEEN])EXV
B8) Z MR - RN RESF R
B LEmRABEENT

R A7 1 52

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Company (%)

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held™™  FR{§ 2 TR
EEHR ERME s EgaO BB D (%)
Mr. LU Run Ting
(Chairman) Interest of Controlled Corporation 355,259,422 Shares (L) 42.62%
EREXE(ERE) RiEHERE R 355,259,422 8%(L)
Beneficial owner @ 3,700,000 Shares (L) 0.44%
2@ A 3,700,000%(L)
Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner @ 1,500,000 Shares (L) 0.18%
& P& 2@ AP 1,500,0008%(L)
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner @ 4,120,000 Shares (L) 0.49%
Bk E RamA® 4,120,0008%(L)
Mr. LU Xiaozhong Beneficial owner ©® 1,000,000 Shares (L) 0.12%
B/NREE 2@ A® 1,000,0008%(L)

(1)

@)

3

()

5)

The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the Shares or the relevant
associated corporation.

Mr. LU Run Ting (“Chairman LU”)’s interests are consisted of: (i) 2,960,000
Shares to be issued subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme; and (ii) 740,000 Shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme exercised on 29 July 2015.

Mr. HOU Ping’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,200,000 Shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and (ii)
300,000 Shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme exercised on 25 August 2015.

Mr. LU Runyi’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,600,000 Shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme; (ii)
2,120,000 Shares transferred from GIHL (being a controlling shareholder of
the Company and wholly-owned by Chairman LU) on 20 March 2015, and (iii)
400,000 Shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme exercised on 25 August 2015.

Shares which are subject to options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(¢

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

EREEEERERAA
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FFHHIIRE °
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BURERRHEETZ) T I #7788 17 2,960,0008% © LA K (ii)
R2015%F 7729 HiEBITIE B R AF¥EFBER
TEETEIZ7THR 17 740,0008% °

RFFELEZ B 1) B XN FIEE BRI
2| AT 27T 17 1,200,0008% : LA R (i)R2015%F8
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JR17300,0008% °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the year ended 31 December 2016.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended
31 December 2016, no Director had declared interests in any entity
which competes, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and Senior Management in respect of certain liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. As required by Section 470(1) and
(2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), it is confirmed that
the permitted indemnity provision mentioned above is/was in force
for the benefit of the Directors/then Directors when the Directors’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance; and has been in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2016,
respectively. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association,
subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, every
Director or other officer or auditor may be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against any liability, loss or expenditure
incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, which relate to anything done or omitted to be done or
alleged to have been done or omitted to be done by him as an
officer or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given in
his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection with
any application in which relief is granted to him by the court from
liability in respect of any such act or omission.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 30 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 178 to 186 of this
Annual Report.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreement will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year 2016.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors for the year 2016 are set out in
Note 10 to the Consolidated Statements on pages 156 to 159 of this
Annual Report.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided
to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined
in the Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all
the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied with by the controlling shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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The Company has adopted two share option schemes and one
share award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and
eligible employees. Details of these schemes are set out in the
paragraph headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 30 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 178 to 186 of this
Annual Report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year
2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARE CAPITAL

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to the SFO
recorded that, as at 31 December 2016, the following persons and
corporations had interests in the shares or underlying shares in the
Company:

NABE RN IR ERT B Rk —IER D 52 E)
B AHB R EREEERAEIRES -
BB SEINEBEN L B ETEl | —
B RANFEHRFPE178H E 186 B4R A PR
FHIFE30 ©

R20165 A - HEEERREAME -

FTERREDR

REARRIKBES RBEGEIITRZER
it - R2016%F 128318 + FHALFAA
A A D R SRR 2 4 s

Approximate
shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held™ percentage
2% MaME et G BOBRES
Mr. LU Run Ting Interest of Controlled Corporation®? 355,259,422 Shares (L) 42.62%
ERELE RIEHEE OO 355,259,422 %(L)
Beneficial owner@® 3,700,000 Shares (L) 0.44%
= 7 A Q0 3,700,000/%(L)
Ms. ZHANG Jian® Family 358,959,422 Shares (L) 43.07%
R A+ ® ENIS 358,959,422 % (L)
Gemalto® Interest of Controlled Corporation 152,931,181 Shares (L) 18.35%
RIEHDEE S 152,931,181R%(L)
Areo Holdings Limited Interest of Controlled Corporation 41,723,000 Shares (L) 5.00%
("Areo")® REHDEE R 41,723,0004%(L)
Notes: HaE -
(1) The letter “ L” denotes a person’s long position in the Shares or shares of the (1)  [LIXXBRIA LK1 K& BIEEL B 22 Ak

relevant Group member.

) The disclosed interest represents (i) the interest in the Company held by GIHL,
which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU is deemed to
be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO; and (ii) his
interests in 2,960,000 underlying Shares of shares options to be issued subject
to exercise of such options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and 740,000 Shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options
Scheme exercised on 29 July 2015.

3) Ms. ZHANG Jian, the spouse of Chairman LU, is deemed to be interested in
Chairman LU'’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

4) The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by Gemplus
International S.A. (“GISA”), which is wholly-owned by Gemalto, whose shares
are listed and traded on the NYSE Euronext Amsterdam and NYSE Euronext
Paris. Therefore, Gemalto is deemed to be interested in GISA’s interest in the
Company by virtue of the SFO.
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(5)  Based on the Disclosure of Interests notices filed on 20 August 2015, the  (5)  }ZRE2015F8 20 HE e B HRE - AT

g8z
disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by ORCHID ASIA FE1Ea AORCHID ASIA VI, LP.FIORCHID ASIA V S %’ﬂ
VI, LP. and ORCHID ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT, LIMITED. ORCHID ASIA VI, LP. CO-INVESTMENT,LIMITED Bf # B 2 & 2 7 # S “EH
is indirectly wholly owned by Areo while ORCHID ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT, 7 ° ORCHID ASIA VI, LP. iAreo i 2 B # A,

LIMITED is directly wholly owned by Areo. Accordingly, Areo is deemed to be 1 ORCHID ASIA V' CO-INVESTMENT, LIMITED #1 = £
interested in the interest in the Company held by ORCHID ASIA VI, LP. and AreoBE# 2 BHA o Bt + KIFEEZEZREIF é%%
ORCHID ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT, LIMITED by virtue of the SFO. In addition, Ms. Bl - Areo#%#2 AR ORCHID ASIA VI, LP. FIORCHID £ %ﬁ
LAM Lai Ming and Mr. LI Gabriel are deemed to be interested in the Company by ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT, LIMITEDFT# 2 A2 Al

virtue of the SFO through Areo. To the best knowledge of the Company, each of BB ED o B KEESREE -
Ms. LAM Lai Ming and Mr. LI Gabriel is an independent third party. PRBEBA 2 + FI1F B 15 55 £ 1R (E R Areo T .2 X m
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE HBE  rHERBE ELHHS

COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES éé%ﬂ
Sop
2 S H
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company purchased REZE2016512A31BILZEE - XA T o7
its ordinary shares listed on the Stock Exchange as follows: REEZFTEIEE AN B EmAR T ¢ <
B
Aggregate S5k
No. of consideration g fgﬁg:n
ordinary Price per share (exclusive of g “B
Month A Shares SRER transaction 2
Highest Lowest cost) S
o g T
HEST 3 il
EER (RBERS 2 E?*E
A B= Bi& EA) g=8
HKD HKD HKD'000 -
B ok BETT sed
ga
June 2016 201656 A 565,000 2.41 2.37 1,351 <0
1,351 € w
s5 %
Lol
The aforesaid ordinary Shares purchased were cancelled. FiEERNEE 2B o 5 b
5
Except for the above, neither the Company nor any of its B Eai 2z o - REZE2016%F12 A31H 12 8
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’'s & @ WEAAFHEEAMBAREE - ggﬁunu
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2016. HENBEARRR LTHSF o éé@
°2T
Zom
The Board believes that the above share purchase is in the best ZEFEHEUNLEEQARRMHHTEEARAR L
interests of the Company and the Shareholders. AR B RS S =T 2= o =
2
S
JoF
g
SR
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for 13% (2015: 16.8%) and 41.1% (2015: 42.5%),
respectively, of the Group's total turnover from continuing
operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for 33.5% (2015: 55.5%) and 54.8% (2015:
73.5%), respectively, of the Group’s total purchases from suppliers.

Mr. PAGEZY was a board representative nominated by Gemalto
onto the Board, which is a major supplier and a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Certain Bank of China entities in the PRC are major customers of
the Company, whose ultimate holding company is Bank of China
Limited, which is also the ultimate holding company of BOCI
Investment, a substantial shareholder of the Company until 12
November 2014. Mr. TING Tao |, one of the non-executive Directors,
was a board representative nominated by BOCI Investment onto the
Board.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Shares in issue) had interests in
the above suppliers or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following related party transactions entered into during the
year ended 31 December 2016 constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Group under the Listing Rules. The Company
confirms that the following disclosure with respect to the
continuing connected transactions has complied with the disclosure
requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Gemalto

The Group had been purchasing certain microprocessors composed
of an electronic component embedding a card operating system,
also known as IC chips (the “Gemalto IC Chips”), from Gemalto.
On 15 November 2013, a module supply agreement was entered
into among the Company, Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company
Limited, Goldpac Limited (the “Goldpac Entities”) and Gemalto,
pursuant to which, Gemalto supplied to and the Goldpac Entities
purchased from Gemalto or its affiliates Gemalto IC chips for a
term from 4 December 2013 until 31 December 2015. On 25
February 2016, the Goldpac Entities entered into a mutual supply
agreement for a term from 1 January 2016 until 31 December
2018 (the “Mutual Supply Agreement”) with Gemalto, pursuant
to which (i) the Goldpac Entities shall supply to Gemalto with,
among others, products such as banking card modules, cardbody
and personalisation machines, equipments, spare parts and relevant
consumables (the “Supply of Goldpac Products”); and (ii) Gemalto
shall supply to the Goldpac Entities with Gemalto IC Chips (the
“Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips”).

Pursuant to the Mutual Supply Agreement:

o the annual caps in respect of the Supply of Goldpac Products
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the two years
ending 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are
RMB12,000,000, RMB16,000,000 and RMB 20,000,000,
respectively; and

o the annual caps in respect of the Purchase of Gemalto IC
Chips for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the two
years ending 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are
RMB750,000,000, RMB750,000,000 and RMB750,000,000,
respectively.

Gemalto
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As each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) (as defined under the Listing Rules) calculated by reference
to the annual caps is less than 5%, the Supply of the Goldpac
Products from the Goldpac Entities to Gemalto as contemplated
under the Mutual Supply Agreement is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements, but exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) (as defined under the Listing Rules) calculated by
reference to the annual caps is/are more than 5% and more than
HKD 10,000,000, the Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips by Goldpac
Entities from Gemalto as contemplated under the Mutual Supply
Agreement is subject to reporting, announcement and Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Mutual Supply Agreement, the Purchase of
Gemalto IC Chips as contemplated under the Mutual Supply
Agreement and the annual caps contemplated thereunder were
approved by the independent Shareholders on 25 February 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the actual transaction
amount in respect of the Supply of Goldpac Products and the
Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips amounted to RMB518,000 and
RMB234,028,000, respectively.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Auditor”), the auditor of
the Company, reviewed the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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The Auditor has issued a review report to the board and confirmed
that for the year 2016:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;

(3) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out above, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap approved by the
extraordinary general meeting on 25 February 2016 in respect
of each of the disclosed continuing connected transactions.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions arising from the Mutual Supply
Agreement with Gemalto in respect with Supply of Goldpac
Products and Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips during the year ended
31 December 2016 and confirmed that the transactions were:

i in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

ii. on normal commercial terms; and

iii. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.
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SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that has publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
permitted under the Listing Rules since the Listing until the date of
this Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 3 November 2016, Goldpac Investment Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a provisional
sale and purchase agreement with Junefield (Beijing Hong Kong)
Development Company Limited, an independent third party, to
acquire 13th floor of Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre
on No.56 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong at a consideration of
HKD178,000,000 (equivalent approximately to RMB154,174,000)
for the use as the headquarters for the Group’s overseas business
expansion. The total cost of the property together with transaction
costs such as stamp duty and property agent commission will be
approximately HKD194,554,000 (equivalent approximately to
RMB168,512,000). The acquistion of the property was completed
on 18 January 2017.

On 6 January 2017, Goldpac Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company acquired a parcel of land at the price of
RMB26,669,442 through the auction (listing-for-sale) process. The
land parcel is situated in the west of Goldpac Tech Park, Zhuhai
City, Guangdong Province, PRC, where the operation of the
Group is located. The land parcel covers an area of approximately
20,999.56 square meters with a land use right of 50 years, where
the Group will commence construction of Asia’s leading Fintech
and Data Service Center. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the bidding deposit amounted to RMB8,010,000 was placed
and included in other receivables. The remaining balance of the
consideration amounted to RMB 18,659,000 was fully settled on 17
February 2017.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on 18 May
2017.

On behalf of the Board

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good
corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year under review,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions as set out in
the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year 2016.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent
as the Model Code for securities transactions of employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company (the “Employees Written Guidelines”). No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of
four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Below is the list of Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (Senior Vice President)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
(Member of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. TING Tao | (Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Members of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Mr. ZHU Lijun (Members of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee)

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Members of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 30 to
40 of this Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 30 to 40 of
this Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on
the Company’s business development and daily management and
operations generally.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all times
had complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a term of three years and is
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board takes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly-appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on his first appointment to the Board to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, each Director has
read books/journals or attended relevant training to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the chairman and members of each board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 02 to 04 of this Annual
Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to
the Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the

Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results
and Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended 31
December 2016 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions, arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties, the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. MAK
Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. ZHU Lijun and
Mr. LIU John Jianhua.

The Audit Committee also met with the external Auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration of the
senior management is listed as below by band:

7 A 48

Band of remuneration

ERZECCBHAMASE - AEH T
FEVKES  ARBEZE2016F12H318
IEZ FERNRE - U RAE B HRE ML
BF AIFEENMRREERER  INEZH
MM TIESE - BERS  EERE
B C ARIEERBERMER - EFM
SREBAEFIFNFEEREEZER - ~Q
RIEEAEERERETHRRMER - 124
SFRAIREMEBESINEGR - ARIETHRE
ERERNURREEERAREANBEESS
AME - BEREZEEHM=FKEAMNK - A1
KREE(EZZEGERE) KUFEREM
RFEZE S A o

BERZBENAENTESTRENBIRT
EHNEZBENETT T MAEE °

= A B B 1Y S

NEE2016FE12A31HIEZFE  aRE
BB WA RO ¢

Number of person

AE

HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,500,000

Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive
and Employees are set out in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on the pages 156 to 159 of this Annual Report.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration adjustment principle of all employees as a whole,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee met for four times to review and make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration adjustment principle of all
employees as a whole, the remuneration policy and structure of
the Company, and the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and other related matters. The Remuneration Committee
comprises three members, namely, Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Chairman
of Remuneration Committee), Mr. TING Tao | and Mr. MAK Wing
Sum Alvin.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience. The Nomination Committee would review the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually and discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s gender,
age, character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at the
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained. The Nomination Committee comprises five members,
namely, Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman of Nomination Committee), Mr.
Christophe Jacques PAGEZY, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. ZHU
Lijun and Mr. LIU John Jianhua.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of
the biography of the company secretary of the Company are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
Annual Report. Ms. Li confirmed that she took no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in the year ended 31 December
2016 as required by the Listing Rules.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EERZEE2RfENHERL#
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and board &I EZZXEAQTNEZE20165F12 A 31
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held HIF>EERBTHNESS - Z8€eF
during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the table IREAESH L FELEM TRAR -

below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE &ERH
Annual Other
General General
Nomination Remuneration Audit Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee REAE Hit
SRR 58  REZE®  FMEEe  gnZae X REAR
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. LU Run Ting 4/4 1/1 N/A N/A il 1/1
EBEELE
Mr. HOU Ping 4/4 N/A N/A N/A m 171
RIEEAE
Mr. LU Runyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11 1/1
ERfaxAE
Mr. LU Xiaozhong 4/4 N/A N/A N/A m 11
BNBEE
Non-executive Directors
FHITES
Mr. Christophe Jacques
PAGEZY 4/4 1/1 N/A N/A il 0/1
Christophe Jacques
PAGEZY L4
Mr. TING Tao | 4/4 N/A 4/4 N/A 1/1 1/1
TE—%4E
Independent Non-
executive Directors
BYKHTES
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin 4/4 11 4/4 2/2 1 11
BRBREE
Mr. ZHU Lijun 4/4 11 N/A 2/2 il 1/1
RUBERE
Mr. LIU John Jianhua 4/4 11 4/4 2/2 11 1/1
BlEES A

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held KT ®EHRNEEZTZE - N2016F FfF IR
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent JEITE R (BIEBIUIERTES)BHA 78
non-executive Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors BHITESHFERNEE o

during the year 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 105 to 107 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR’ S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to HKD 1,680,000 and
HKD384,102 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out below:

ESRMBRERNBE

EERRENBTREARNRFEE2016F
12A318 L2 FEMEREROBE o

BV TABEMABAEESARATFE
REENZINEANERNFHRBERANEXN
TEARERE ©

A 2 R1I8 A% B A 3 B 7S SR PR R B R Y
BB AN F 3R 2 B A AR E L1055
1078 °

AR

S FARRBINEZEBEEBE E20165F
12 8318 1L 2 FE N ZERE & IEZE AR
% 2 Bl & 5 5l & 7% ¥ 1,680,000 7 Al 7 %
384,1027T °

SN FARBINEZBENRBEERT &5

FifTERE Z2016F12A31H I 2 FEZ
RS MRS 2 BN & D AT R ¢

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category BR &8 B ENER

HKD

S

Audit Services ZE AR TS 1,680,000
Non-audit Services IERZER TS

— Interim review —rh HAZE B 380,000

— Others —EHfh 4,102

2,064,102
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for continually overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fullfiling its
oversight and corporate governance role in the Group's financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls and
the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Risk Management Structure

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined level of responsibility and reporting procedures. The Board
oversees the overall management of Group’s risks, with assistant
from the Audit Committee on reviewing and monitoring key risks.
Management is responsible for designing and implementing the
risk management and internal control system. Management is
also committed to fostering a risk aware and control conscious
environment. Operating units are responsible for the identification
and management of risks in their operations and a comprehensive
approach is adopted for enterprise-wide risk. Responsibility for risk
management resides at all levels within the Group, from the Board
through the organisation to each manager and employee.

The Group’s risk management framework is guided by the Three
Lines of Defense model as shown below:

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
BE=5R

By B R B A ER ER 4R

EXeRREAEARBHEEAEENR
REENMAPEERG  WEBESELZES
ELBFRITERN - ERREEHPES
ERTEEERGEERRE  REASE
BmHH - EBE - a8 RREELAE
7 URSBEIR R ARRERT L -

Bz EERE

AEEDEY —(EEERRBRERREET
RABERE - ARAREFS 2 RESSEE
EHERREE  THERZEEEHHAAA
EECRBENEZTEANER - EEES
ERREEMAIEEZARRT REE -
BAORESERREREMA S TR E &
Xk - EBHMBEEBRESEENBELE
FRREMER - KREEREETER
KRR ESSEBULERE T HRARH I
ﬁjz °

AEEHRREERBATEIIRN =&
Pz EAERIES]

AUDIT

COMMITTEE

GROUP
MANAGEMENT
REEEE

1ST LINE OF DEFENSE
58— Fh A%

2ND LINE OF DEFENSE
FEER A

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(RISK OWNERSHIP)
HEEERAIEE
(RBEE)

RISK MANAGEMENT
FUNCTIONS
(RISK CONTROL)
B B B R B
(m Bz )
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Risk Management Framework

The Group has in place a risk management framework to effectively
identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key business, financial,
operational and compliance risks. The framework enables the
Group to adopt a proactive and systematic approach to identifying
and managing risks across the organisation to evaluate risk
severity and likelihood of occurrence. The framework also sets
out the procedures of risk management and clarifies the roles
and responsibilities of various departments in relation to risk
management.

[ B B B2 ¥ A

SERYTRBREEEABRIZR - FF
i MEMEEERER - B2 BWHERA
BERR o ZIDEREBRE—EB AR5
B ITEERBIFE R R - DA R AR
BREMMBLENKSE - AR - ZHDERE T
SEMRERERRIE  BRETSHBAERR
EETHERNBREST -

RISK MONITORING
AND REPORTING
BEREERHE

RISK
IDENTIFICATION

CORPORATE STRATEGIC

OBJECTIVES
EEHKEE

BREEREE

ACTION AND

RISK
ASSESSMENT
B RS

The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the
core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, the
respective operating units of the Company review and access the
status of potential risks which may impact on their ability to achieve
their business objectives and/or those of the Group, determine and
implement treatment plans where risk mitigations are actionable.
This review process includes assessment as to whether the existing
internal controls continue to remain relevant, adequately address
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented.

CONTROL ACTIVITIES
TR EIRZEED

AEBCKREREERGEFERLER
oo B EBPIRFE AR ST R AT b P REEEAEX
BRI AREERH B IR NERFENE
FERBREAR - FIE R E A TR RRE &
H it o BRI B AN GIRA NS
EGERRBIAXRTRE  EORHEY
BERBREELFZTUMET -

SHEHABZRERAT —B-—~EFFH 83

Corporate
Information
EER

Highlights

MBHE

Financial

&

2016 Major Events
2016 FAE

Chairman’s
Statement
EERE

and Analysis

EEERR AN

Management
BREERE

EFER

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
ESERE

t
o
Q
7}

4

41
-
"
{r
L
S

(]
o
c
©
c
=
o
>
[¢]

O
g
=
©
e
o
Q
=
(<]

v

Environmental,
Social and Governance
B HERER

BIRER s

Financial Statements



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERRE (&)

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance to relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact
the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
The system and internal controls can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as
they are designed to be managed, rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives.

A description of the Group’s main risk factors is shown on pages
43 to 48 of this Annual Report. The Group continuously works to
improve its risk management framework in order to keep pace with
the changing business environment.

Internal Controls

Internal Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the
Group’s risk management and internal control system. Internal
Control Department reports directly to the Audit Committee to
ensure indentified internal control weaknesses are communicated
and ractified effectively.

Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-oriented audit approach.
The annual audit plan covers major activities and processes of the
Group's compliance, financial, procurement and operations. On
a regular basis, Internal Audit Department reports to the Audit
Committee the results of their activities during the preceding period
pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls,
and follows up the progress of ractification for control weaknesses.

The Group has established and oversees a whistleblower policy and
a set of comprehensive procedures whereby employees, customers,
suppliers and other concerned parties can report any actual or
suspected occurrence of improper conduct involving the Company,
and for such matters to be investigated and dealt with efficiently in
an appropriate and transparent manner.
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The Company formulated the insider information policy and
regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the insider information. The
Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

The Board reviews annually the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. During the year, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The Board and the Audit Committee considered that the key areas
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effectively implemented.

In addition to the review of risk managment and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also accessed
the adequancy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. The external
auditor’'s recommendations also provide enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeqguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition of
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made the requisition (as
the case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and 568 respectively
of the Companies Ordinance. The general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting must be stated in the request.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set
out in the Companies Ordinance for convening a general meeting.
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Right to Circulate Resolution at Annual
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders; or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be)
who have a right to vote at the relevant Annual General Meeting,
may request to circulate a resolution to be moved at an Annual
General Meeting. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for circulating a
resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned

above to the following:

Address: Room 2211, 22nd Floor, Chubb Tower, Windsor
House, 311 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong (For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 2834 6759

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through Annual
General Meetings and other general meetings. At the Annual
General Meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year 2016, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI HERERKRSE

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report is
prepared in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out
in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, and with reference to the
operational practices of the Group. This is the first ESG report
issued by the Group. It outlines our efforts related to sustainable
development in the previous year and aims to promote and facilitate
our communication and interaction with our Shareholders. The
Board has reviewed and approved this report and acknowledged its
accuracy, truthfulness and completeness.

Scope of the Report

This report explains on the Group’s sustainability performance
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (“Year under Review"),
covering the Company and major subsidiaries.
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

As a global leader in smart payment total solutions, the Group is
engaged in its core vision to “Make Transactions Safer and Easier”.
The Group is principally engaged in delivering embedded software
and secure payment products for global customers and leveraging
innovative Fintech to provide personalisation service, system
platform and other total solutions for customers in a wide business
range including finance, government, healthcare, transportation
and retails.

In its business operations, the Group has been exploring,
determining and trying to identify a suitable sustainable
development model that suits the Group. Facing increasing market
demand for secure and convenient smart payment solutions, we
are making continuous progress on “2i Integration (integration
of information technology and industrialization) and intelligent
operations”, committing to researching and popularizing the smart
payment solution that fits with what the society seeks for.

The Group is committed to integrate its business development with
the development of the environment and the society, enabling us to
accomplish the sustainability targets. The Group has been devising
and implementing environmental and societal related policy
initiatives. Through internal and external engagements, we review
the appropriateness of the policy and make amendments on a timely
basis. Over the Year under Review, the Group has been able to
implement the environmental and social management framework,
with the full assistance from its staffs at all levels.

In terms of environmental protection, the Group has complied
with all applicable rules and regulations and emissions standards.
By focusing on emissions reduction and waste management, our
employees are able to tackle waste management in a more effective
way through the internal procedures and systems. While managing
production and operational efficiency, the Group is shouldering the
responsibility of protecting the environment.
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On the social front, the customers’' data security is our top priority.
Through the sound management procedures and employee
trainings, the Group is able to consolidate its leading position in
smart secure payment solutions. Also, we are the only Group in
China who has been accredited by the world’s six largest credit
card organizations. The Group also focuses on employees’ benefits
and safety. Building on the foundation of fulfilling all applicable
employment and safety regulations, we are committed to offering
the development opportunities and a fair, secure, healthy and
enjoyable workplace.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to shoulder its share of
social and environmental responsibility, promoting sustainable
development internally and externally and integrating its daily
operations with the management of environmental and social
impacts. While we aim to promote our businesses and optimize
sustainability measures, we will keep on engaging with different
stakeholder groups, reviewing our own development and bearing
the responsibility of sustainable development.

SCIENTIFIC OPERATION

Superior Quality Products and Services

The Group has been adhering to the philosophy of “Creating the
Greatest Value for Our Clients”, committing to deliver products
and services of superior quality, which we believe are the essential
factors for the Group’s sustainable development. The Group
continues to strive for accrediting its management systems and
products by a wide spectrum of certificates such as I1SO27001
Information Security Management System, and China UnionPay
Quality Management System Certificate. We are also the only Group
in China who has been accredited from the six major credit card
organizations.* Different quality control plans are developed to
match with the needs of clients for a wide range of products in the
production process. For the quality assurance process, guidelines
such as “Raw Material Inspection Guide”, “Process Inspection
Guide”, “IC Card Final Inspection Guide” are adopted. Focusing on
the inspection of raw materials and process inspection and the final
product inspection, we have standardized the procedure and system
control so as to assure product quality and our integrity in terms
of product responsibility. The Group has also set up “Customers
Satisfaction Monitoring Process” to understand the magnitude of
customers’ satisfaction towards products and services, improving
products and services quality control procedures based on the
specific needs of our customers. During the Year under Review, the
Group did not receive any substantial complaints regarding product
quality.

* China UnionPay, Visa, Master, American Express, JCB and Diners
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BE HE8KEAHRE@E

Data Security

The Group has always assigned a great deal of importance to the
security of customer’s data information. As the largest financial
payment card personalisation service provider in Greater China,
the Group has implemented various measures to ensure data
security for individual and financial institutions. In respect of human
resources management, we have implemented security measures
for our employees before, during and after their employment
period. Prospective employees are required to submit a personal
credit report issued by the People’s Bank of China as part of the
background check. Upon signing the employment contract, the
prospective employees are required to sign the “Confidentiality
Agreement” and “Competition Restriction Agreement”. Then,
we ensure all our employees have taken the data security training
and passed the examination before their on-boarding. During
employment, continuous assessment and training sessions are
undertaken on an annual basis. The leaving employees are required
to sign the “Notification on Confidentiality Responsibilities” upon
resignation. For our daily operation and access control system, in
accordance with confidentiality area management, each employee
is granted specific access rights for different operating, depending
on the nature of the job. In strictly confidential areas, we implement
a "double entry entrance system” overseen by the automatic
monitoring system which sends alert signal in case of any security
breach or non-compliance. In the security equipment configuration,
we have established over 450 CCTV security control points and over
1,200 logical security control points at our operating areas. We
possess high standards of security and operational management,
which guarantee customer data security and withstand frequent
security checks by our customers and third-party professional
institutions.

During the Year under Review, the Group conducted trainings on
confidentiality for all employees, educating them about the basic
knowledge on confidentiality, knowledge on computer security,
confidentiality of business secrets and confidential documents
in order to equip them with the necessary information and
security protection skillset, ensuring all employees have adequate
knowledge to handle tasks related to financial data processing
service.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group is conducting business with over one hundred
suppliers located in the PRC and overseas. We are committed to
strengthening our communications with the suppliers, maintaining
long-term partnering relationships. To ensure the Group’s products
and customer service quality, we must make sure that our suppliers
have the appropriate capacity. The Group has formulated the
“Supplier Evaluation and Control Procedures” to thoroughly
assess suppliers on the criteria of production materials, production
equipment and spare parts, IT equipment, product transportation,
labour protection products and information technology products.
The evaluation criteria include not only commercial factors such
as supply capacity, quality and price, but also safety control
measures used at production sites, occupational health and safety
of the employees and other environmental and social factors. The
assessment does not target only new suppliers, existing suppliers
are also subject to the Group’s assessment on an annual basis. For
raw materials suppliers, the Group’s Quality Control Department
carries out sample testing and small batch trials in order to have
a comprehensive assessment of the reliability of the supplied
materials. After each assessment is completed, we will issue a
corresponding assessment report and update the list of qualified
suppliers to provide a basis for selection of suppliers.

Anti-Corruption

The Group advocates law-abiding integrity, honest professional
ethics and prohibits any form of corruption and bribery behaviors.
We adhere to the implementation of the highest standards of
openness, integrity and accountability through the development
of “Anti-Fraud Whistleblowing Management System”. This is to
encourage employees and all parties who have business contacts
with us, including customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors,
to report any incidents of suspected misconduct to the Group.
Whistleblowers may, in person or in writing, report to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and it is then forwarded to other members
of the Committee for internal investigation or other investigation
actions in accordance with the best interests of the Group. The
Audit Committee constantly reviews and monitors the effectiveness
of the system. Specifically, for the procurement process, we require
all suppliers to comply with the Group's anti-bribery policy to ensure
that the procurement process is fair, just and open. No corruption
cases or related violations have been observed in the Year under
Review.
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Community Involvement

While the Group continues to provide quality products to customers
and the community, we are enthusiastic about social affairs and
care for the community. Through community and charity services,
we have taken initiatives to strengthen ties and communications
with the local community by means of donations and volunteering
service, striving to actively contribute to the society.

CARING FOR PEOPLE

Employment Policy

The Group values and appreciates every employee’s contribution to
its success. We hope our employees can develop within the Group,
and hence we provide our employees with a fair, safe, healthy and
cheerful working environment and a wide range of development
opportunities, facilitating personal growth. The Group’s human
resources policy strictly complies with the relevant labour laws
and regulations, and provides various welfare and benefits to the
employees, such as pension scheme and medical insurance. The
Group reviews remuneration on an annual basis and ensures it is
competitive and up to prevailing market standards. We have pre-IPO
share option scheme, share option scheme and share award scheme
to reward and encourage the employees to contribute to the Group,
attracting talents to join the strategic development of the Group.
The Group offers an annual free health check for employees joining
before January, aiming to raise employees’ health awareness.

The Group values openness, fairness and transparency in the
recruitment process. The Human Resource Department recruits
talents in accordance with the “Annual Human Resource Plan”
approved by the CEO and the "Request for New Employee
Application” submitted by various departments. To ensure moral
standards of the employees, qualities like integrity, team spirit,
professional, law compliance and other relevant criteria are
listed in the “Recruitment Prospect” to build up foundations for
information security of the Group and the customers in respect with
human resources. The Group is an equal opportunity employer and
disregards factors such as race, religions, gender, marital status,
etc. in the recruitment process. We perform strict identity checks of
new employees to prevent hiring of child labour. As well, we respect
and support free choices of employment, by following a standard
procedure of resignations, existing employees can depart officially
in accordance with contracts and lawful procedures. In the Year
under Review, there was no report of violation of labour laws and
regulations.

94 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2016

HESH

AEBEETHREP M @RHEEEEMD
R - HAIREOMLE - 202 ETEET -
BB SR NMEERYE RBEBMNET
RN - ESH N8R S &R AOB B E
B EEE B o

HAEEST
BREEE

AEEPHEE (BT  EEMRH MR
AEENTESE - BASEZEE TRHEE
FARVERZR - URQF 22 BF 8
RETIERE  UHEETIRFHEERAL
SEBRELBEBRER - AEBRAFMH
BEBK - RREMERESR - BRETRH
BREEE BE XX IBNEERES
ETERN o BEHN - AEEEGFET—IRF
Af - BT BRI SRR
&) - MERHERT IR A {0 B2 B At BI LA B BN B B
NWBT > WIIBBEAS HBEEEE D
‘- AEEEREBUEF-AOAABNE
TRE-X2EER SFRETIHAMIES
BREFE - RTEMAERITHER -

EREHE - £ENAF - 2F - RENR
AIBAET - ANBERAISREBEEFEATE
BEHROCERANERRE]) » U K& AP
EXH(BLEFEFE)MER  HAE
BFTIE s R B E TS o SRR IR R
HETE  SENBEKEY  SENEER
4 ImIER S EREE  BSIARAM BT
HEREM(REHE) ANEMBARE - U
BRFBE THARIFNBIEESMBRIZ
o RREEEREFPEREREIT TANE
IRERE o FEEIN - IS - TRAMBRES - I
MrmEk Rk B R Fik - i
B IR - RRSE - e TR FHEA
MAEARBIES - RAISEBRZERARER
IWENEE  HELREARAETINGE
ReRAR  RMEEMREEINMES
mOBBERIIEMBTE BT KRS
PERSOEREFEARER - OEFA - &
BEMETEERRER  WELREMAE
fRERBER -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

. $ié&h-h—\A

=] (nﬁ)

Employees Training and Development

The Group puts strong emphasis on employees’ training and
development, committing to improve skills and encourage them
to add value to their knowledge base. With better professional
skills and knowledge base, it is beneficial not only to the long-
term development of the Group, but also to the society as a whole.
We provide comprehensive trainings for our employees, including
management skills, sales and production, customer service, quality
control and other professional skills. In addition to internal training,
we also sponsor our employees to attend external training on
as-needed basis. For new employees training, we provide not
only basic induction and safety training, we also offer high-level
training courses including quality management and Integration of
Informatization Technology and Industrialization management. This
helps enable new employees to understand the trends of corporate
management by learning the requirements of international
standards, strengthening quality management and organizational
strategic integration, ensuring organizational change and realising
strategic objectives.

To encourage the development of the employees, we have
developed the “Appraisal and Examination Plan”, which is
conducted monthly, quarterly and annually on employees’
performances. By reviewing the work progress, quality and target
achievement level, we set up improvement plans and make new
targets for the next appraisal. Meanwhile, the appraisal result is also
used for employees’ promotion purposes such that employees with
excellent appraisal performance have priority in receiving training
and promotion.
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Occupational Health and Safety

Employee is the most valuable asset of the Group, and one of
the primary contributors to its success. We strive to provide
a safe workplace for our employees through setting up the
“Environmental, Health and Safety Handbook” and "The
Occupational Health Management System”. More resources are
allocated to enhance occupational health and safety, creating a
safe and harmonious workplace. We have adopted measures such
as equipment upgrades, ventilation enhancement, activated carbon
for air treatment, equipment acoustic enclosures, and providing
comprehensive protective equipment for employees including masks
for those working in printing plant, earplugs for those working in
processing and IC packaging plants. Employees are strictly required
to wear these equipment and gear.

We aim to raise the employees’ safety awareness and their ability to
tackle emergency cases, ensuring that we can have a quick, orderly,
timely and effective response. The Group conducted emergency
response trainings and rehearsals regularly, strengthening our
emergency rescue and response ability, mitigating hazards and
loss during accidents and ensuring a safe, healthy and orderly
development for the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group places environmental protection on high priority.
Through formulating internal management system and control
procedure, we start by conserving resources and mitigating
pollutions and emissions, aiming to minimize the impacts to the
environment and society caused by our operations and productions.
Our Corporate Program Management Department manages the
Group’s environmental-related works, promoting environmental
management system through 1SO14001 standard and its
certification. For different environmental management projects, we
have established corresponding management control procedures,
ensuring our operations are in strict compliance with relevant
environmental laws and regulations and emissions standard. During
the year, no fines or non-monetary sanctions were imposed on the
Group due to environmental non-compliance.

Energy Saving and Emissions Reduction

The Group proactively promotes a green production culture. We
have established the “Resources Monitoring Procedure” and
“Electricity Saving Management and Regulations”, aiming to
achieve our energy saving targets within the office and production
plants. Different departments in our Group contribute their parts
to the environmental management framework. Our Administration
Department is responsible for the management of electronic
equipment of public area; whereas our Engineering Equipment
Department is responsible for the management and auditing of
central air conditioning systems, electricity and gas.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8KEAHRE@E

On emissions reduction, the Group focuses on the management
of water, air and noise pollution and has set up respective control
measures. We set up and follow a stringent “Water, Air and
Noise Pollution Control Procedures” to manage the emission of
pollutants in our daily operations. Also, our Quality Assurance
Department regularly appointed accredited organizations for
monitoring to prevent and mitigate pollutions. The department
responds to any non-compliance immediately and reports the
cause of non-compliance to the EHS representatives for corrective
actions. According to “Domestic Wastewater Treatment Project
Design Solution”, we have established environmental facilities at
our factories, handling domestic wastewater and a tiny amount of
organic industrial wastewater. Only the wastewater after treatment
that meets the standard will be discharged into drainage system.
Benzene, toluene and xylene in the exhaust gas from the plants
are treated by activated carbon devices to comply with our “VOCs
Emission Treatment Program” before releasing into the atmosphere.
We regularly hire third-party companies for external audit to
review the performance and effectiveness of our environmental
management system.

Waste Management and Recycling

We have assigned four different ways to dispose waste generated
during the production process: collected by recyclers, special
treatment companies, certified collectors and the suppliers. All
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes disposed must be treated
according to the “Waste Disposal Control Procedure” before final
disposal. We also encourage the reuse and recycle of packaging
materials such as paper boxes and cartons. For non-reusable
materials like heat activated shrink films, we appoint qualified
collectors for treatment and recycle.

Promoting Green Products

The Group strives to minimize the impacts to the environment
during the product’s lifespan by investing innovative green
productions. We have successfully invested environmentally-
friendly cards in which its raw material is more decomposable than
traditional materials. The simple design of the cards also delivers
a message of promoting environmental protection. While the
innovative products can greatly reduce the industry’s impacts on
the environment, it also enhances the customer’s environmental
responsibility.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBERE

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of Goldpac Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldpac
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 108 to 203, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“the
HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SR T EAE )

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FRREEFTEE

FRETFHSRBELFNERAE - RS
BARREMBRENBAR/EENSE
B BEFHEEHRAN B RRBEET
BT HABRRETREN - RAATEY
ELEHEREBNESR -

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

PEW & SR EVR E B

We identified the estimated impairment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the significant
balance of trade receivables to the consolidated
statement of financial position and the management
judgment required in identifying long-aged receivables
and determining the allowance for doubtful debt.

B REERNVRERESRNSEREFZE  An
RUNEREREMBRRPEERNGEH  UNEEES
Z 3 B R RARES U E S S R R B 0 b 5HE L I -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management identified the long-aged item
based on aging analysis and determined allowance for
doubtful debt based on the aging of trade receivables,
credit portfolio of the debtors and default or significant
delay on payments. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables of the Group amounted to RMB339,970,000
as at 31 December 2016. Based on the management'’s
assessment, the allowance for doubtful debt was
RMB17,431,000 as at 31 December 2016.

ARG TSR T AFT IR 5R - B IR E R R AR D AT ek Al
RFROBKRER - WREERKRERNRRMNESAD
EREAEREBRNBEED R MIORERKRER - &
F£2016F12A31H L EENEKRERNFEERSARK
339,970,000 T © WRIFEEEMNFTE - BE20165F128
318 IE 2 RERBEHE /217,431,0007T °
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the estimated impairment of trade
receivables included:

BAEREEFRERBNREEZFIEEF 21

3 Understanding the basis of the allowance for
doubtful debt adopted by the Group;
o B EENREREER ;

3 Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
aging analysis of the trade receivables to relevant
documents;

o FEAIFMEBE N IAERERERZ RO THLE
Rl

o Testing the subsequent settlements, on a sample
basis, to the relevant documents;

o WMEARMBRGEEMNREXT



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRETEEH@
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° Evaluating the reasonableness of the management

assessment on the identification of long-aged g -
receivables and the recoverability of trade S5k
receivables, and the sufficiency of the allowance %%&
for doubtful debt made by the Group as at 31 é‘“’&“ﬁ-ﬁ
December 2016; and =
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o Evaluating the historical accuracy of the allowance
for doubt debt estimated by management to the
actual settlement and the actual loss incurred.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SR T EAE )

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FAREETEE @)

Estimated allowance for inventories

FEREMG

We identified the estimated allowance for inventories
as a key audit matter due to the management
judgment required in identifying slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and determining the allowance for
inventories.

B FEREEFBNSEREFZE  ANERE
HEEHBAE R REFE TR EF B HIE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management identifies slow-moving
inventories and obsolete inventories that are no longer
suitable for use in production or sales based on aging
analysis, and estimate the allowance for inventories
based on aging of inventories, technology changes
and current market demand. The carrying amounts of
inventories of the Group amounted to RMB211,212,000
as at 31 December 2016. Based on the management's
assessment, the allowance for inventories was
RMB46,025,000 as at 31 December 2016.

WMFEE MWK TAFTIRE - EEERBRE D ITH
AIEHERTBEARNEERHENRETE - URE
FEREK RMEMMERMSHREATFTERE -
BE206F12A3MBLEENGTFERAESARYK
211,212,000 - RIFEELEHFE - BE20165F128
MBI FERE S AR46,025,0007T °
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of estimated allowance for inventories
included:

B FEREROREEZFEREFeE

o Understanding the basis of the allowance for
inventories adopted by the Group;
s BESENTEREER:

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the aging analysis of inventories to relevant
documents;

o HEOHBARR X AR B iRl DT RV EREE

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the management
assessment on the identification of slow-moving
and obsolete inventories and the sufficiency of
the allowance for inventories with reference to
aging of inventories, usage or sales record for
aged-inventories, current market conditions and
technology changes;

e HNEEEREERBEFERK MREFSNERAIHEE
L BRI ISR MM E AT B RE SR E
FEZEBUENARFERENTRML
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° For raw materials that no allowance have been
made, considering the subsequent usage of raw

materials and tracing a selection of subsequent % gﬁ
usage of raw materials to the relevant documents; é—;gé
and g%ﬁ&}
o  HNKRIEHBHENREME - ZREMENEHZER 2oE
1830 R s 96 (A AOAERE X 1 ¢ R 2
fm
o For finished goods that no allowance have been % %ﬁ
made, considering the subsequent selling prices of g E‘"&
finished goods and comparing the unit costs of a _‘éﬁm
[a]

selection of finished goods with their subsequent
selling prices.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SR T EAE )

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

104  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SRR TE T EAE D)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BB R B RS P B RRA
ENE

L

BPWER RSB RRERES
T?EEEEéﬁk%‘ﬁiﬁa&ﬁﬁ%@lﬁ’]ikﬁa%&ﬁ%L
REEERFRE  XRERFECRAIGRED F
A5 MR R EEMEZERREABERME
SEOZBERE o BRULASN - RPIJE T
AREREMRE - ATETRARE AR
HEMEMA AR EAEEREEANE
% - BERERRKFORE - BTEERE
BIEKEBETERDETHEN  BX—E
KB R FERABREHER - SRR AT A
HEFFEERER S| - MREBTEBEMES
OB R A LR BAR A M MR EAE K
AP BMRMMELNEERE - AIAH
HERER PR A AT IR AR AF X o

ERB(EBEAER ) ETEANBRES
BPERTEXRHE  RETERRRE
J& o ZAITF -

o S AIANET Ak B A BREE S B AR T B BUAR
é%ﬁﬁ%?&ik&&%Lmﬂ
b RETRAITEIRFAES G L
REbg - ARERTEMEENETR
B ERERMEROER - ;RERGE
AR RBR  BE EEERE
BRER - ERBERABEHR 2 - B
[l - ﬁl%%ﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁ%&
PR it /) B B S A AR B %’%i/ﬁulﬁa%&ﬁﬁ Ll
B B2 K BH AR R ) [ B

o  THREZEHEBMAREES
HEEMEEF BE E@I?E;T;m
BABEFHNEREERRER -

e HEEZ=MERASERMREER
{ER St AR EN QB -

SHERBZRERAT —B-—rEFH 105

Corporate
Information
EER

Financial
Highlights
HRHE

2016 £AER

2016 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis

BEBH AR

Management
EEREREERE

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
EEE®RE

Corporate Governance
Report
LEERBE

Environmental,
Social and Governance
B HERER

BMBHRE

o)
3]
=
9]
=
9]
2
©
8
%]
=
v
c
]
=
i



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % B AR S ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE JI;;% EJ@%“I‘%&T— Bt 7% 3R = A&

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the .
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the o
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

106  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B ZE RS (|

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chong Kwok Shing.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBEREMEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

2015
Notes RMB’'000
BtaF ARBT T
Turnover 2 5 1,393,713 1,684,632
Cost of sales SHE R (974,711) (1,239,632)
Gross profit EF 419,002 445,000
Other income H A 6 63,256 70,474
Other gains or losses H b Wz Sk ES 18 7 30,939 622
Research and development costs 2L B (98,050) (79,539)
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko SHR AR (132,105) (112,521)
Administrative expenses THRX (32,981) (30,552)
Share of (loss) profit of associates FE{ B N F) (EE ) ‘@ A 18 (5,495) 2,743
Finance costs B TSR AN 8 — (48)
Profit before taxation B %% A R 9 244,566 296,179
Taxation IE 11 (39,666) (54,3471)
Profit for the year FEFE 204,900 241,838
Other comprehensive income for the year 4 & E th 2 E U A
Item that may be subsequently reclassified AREI#4E 2482
to profit or loss: Bz HE -
— exchange differences arising on — ME BN EBEERE
translation of foreign operations HERE 1,553 1,634
Total comprehensive income for FEZHEWALLE
the year 206,453 243,472
Earnings per share FRAER 13
— Basic — &K 24.6 cents &  29.1 cents &
— Diluted — e 24.6 cents &  28.7 cents &

7108  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRRBR

At 31 December 2016 722016412 A31H

2015 :;ﬁ
Notes RMB'000 §g4
it AREFTT -
288
Non-current assets FRBEE o
Property, plant and equipment E Y YN E 14 167,579 196,108 2
Land use rights T b s P 15 620 755 é@
Goodwill Bk 16 1,375 1,375 g¥
Intangible assets R B 17 11,256 13,546  £R
Interests in associates AR/ W - e 18 33,052 38,457 -
Amount due from an associate JE U B 2 N B 22 869 814 cEy
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE HWERRHED gé%
property, plant and equipment NE® 23 29,456 6,432 EE
Pledged bank deposit BEEMIRITHER 24 100,000 100,000 <
Fixed bank deposits RITEBHER 24 110,000 110,000 2 %
454,207 467,487  L:E
£k
=
Current assets RENEE -
Inventories (3 19 211,212 320,936  S:m
Trade receivables U E R 20 339,970 492,903 2 i%ﬂ
Other receivables and prepayments H th FE UL R FE AT IR 21 32,647 19,589 é ;:ﬁ
Amount due from an associate JE Ui Bt 4 N B R 22 8,409 4,153 £m
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITIFR 24 39,707 22,064 e
Fixed bank deposits ﬁiﬁiﬁﬂﬁ;” 24 687,988 296,089 £&f
Bank balances and cash TERERE 24 825,442 983,620 g5
2,145,375 2,139,354 :
Current liabilities REEE £ 8
Trade and bills payables ERERKENRE 25 515,101 567,317 5
Other payables H {th fE T 5RI8 26 137,410 147,662 8
Government grants T # 27 14,700 18,720 528
Taxation I8 48,931 36,180 25@
716,142 769,879 L
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,429,233 1,369,475 g’ﬂﬂ
2%
Total assets less current liabilities REERMBAE 1,883,440 1,836,962 %ﬁ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
e AR ER (&)

At 31 December 2016 7201612 A31H

2015
Notes RMB’'000
BtaF AREET T
Non-current liability FEREBEME
Deferred taxation EAERIE 28 10,111 22,748
Net assets EERE 1,873,329 1,814,214
Capital and reserves ERK#E
Share capital A&z 29 1,191,941 1,190,419
Reserves B 681,388 623,795
Total equity R 1,873,329 1,814,214

The consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 203 were ZEZE&TDMN2017FE3821BER T BBE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 108 E £ 203 B 44 M MA I ZEM - AU M

March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: LNTEEERERES
LU RUN TING HOU PING
EEE &RE
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
EFSTEFHNTES HITEEREEHITE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE E2016512A31R L2 FE

Shares g‘gﬁ

held §§<ﬂ

under =

share Share = £

Share award  options Translation Other  Statutory  Retained §z§ §

capital  scheme  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserves profits Total B
B

#EHE  EEE #AR 25

BA  #ERG BB EXGE  HbWE iR AR 4 20
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 gé
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARSTT ARETR R

(Notei)  (Note i)
() (W)

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

At 1 January 2015 1201551518 1,175,015 — 33,319 1,713 39,180 44513 317,098 1,610,838 -
.% ;\5
Exchange differences arising on BERNERR 8 %55:
translation of foreign operations EREE — — — 1,634 — — — 1,634 9 ;E
Other comprehensive income ERAMRZERA 2
for the year - — — 1,634 — — — 1,634 g —~
Profit for the year EREFE - - — = — — 241,838 241838 2 é B
Total comprehensive income EELARA § é’ﬁ
for the year bk - — — 1,634 — — 1838 243472 a
TeE
Repurchase of shares RirEE = = = = = = (2,984)  (2984) g._‘gg;;
Issue of shares upon exercise of share R {7k RIEM %1780 coe
options (note 29) ki3 (Hrit29) 15,404 - 13 = = — — 8,173 o
Recognition of equity-settled share-  LEREEERMHZA g 41
based payments = — 16,868 — — = — 16,368 é =it
Purchase of shares under share award 1RIZR(7 228512 2 £ i
scherme BERH — (74) - - - - — (IZ
Share of reserves of an associate  [EITBEARIGE - - - - 3,451 49 - 3,500 S
Transfers B — — — — — 22,595 (22,595) = g
Dividends recognised as distribution B2 A2 RAIRKE g géfn
(note 12) (Ki#12) - - - - - — 59 @59 £5E
o T
A
15,404 (74) 9,637 — 3,451 22,644 (91,158)  (40,096) n § L
At 31 December 2015 "2015%12A318 1,190,419 (74) 42,956 3,347 42,631 67,157 467,778 1,814,214

BMBHRE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REREREEXR @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 A& E2016F 128318 It 2 FfE

Shares
held
under
share Share
Share award  options Translation Other  Statutory  Retained
capital ~ scheme  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserves profits Total
Kt
#Bie BRE E3) )

k% #EER B EXRG HMEE IERG A it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETRL
(Notei)  (Note i)
(fieti) (i)

Exchange differences arising on BERINEBELN
translation of foreign operations i %

Other comprehensive income EEEHZERA
for the year

Profit for the year EEFE

Total comprehensive income EEREUAER
for the year

Repurchase of shares RiAEEE

Issue of shares upon exercise of AT m A
share options (note 29) ®i3 (Hit29)

Recognition of equity-settled IEREERRHT N
share-based payments

Forfeiture of share options BRERN

Purchase of shares under share RER DR 2
award scheme BERH

Transfers &

Dividends recognised as EAADRARE
distribution (note 12) (Brt12)

At 31 December 2016 20164124318
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

mEEZESHR @

For the year ended 31 December 2016 A& Z=2016F12A31RA L2 FE

Notes:

@i

(ii)

Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory reserves
into capital of a subsidiary of the Company, Goldpac Limited in 2011 and
contribution from a shareholder and share of other reserves of associates.

Under the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
certain subsidiaries of the Company which established in the PRC are required
to make appropriation to the statutory reserve fund at 10% of their profit after
tax based on their statutory financial statements. The statutory reserve fund may
only be used, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase the capital of those subsidiaries.

Kt

() BbEHEER2011FXEFHERTE S HBEFR
RA([RRE G2 HERERERAA])AE
FAEFIR — 5 RV B FE B E R AR -

(i) WRIBFFEARHKFIE([FE ) FREZH - ET

Vil ) Ay NI el oY N L b
XA B FFE10% 7 IOEERNERD © %
FEERNEZ EREERDIBRECIHER - ARE
% ZHTE 2 A1 B4 5 1R 30 2 4 I B 1 &
o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

2015
RMB’000
ARBTT
Operating activities KEES
Profit before taxation MR % BT A1) B 244,566 296,179
Adjustments for: TR IEFEE -
Investment income from Hiv &t &EE
other financial assets HEWA (3,245) (13,430)
Interest income F 2 UA (16,269) (30,359)
Interest expenses B = 48
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BE M
equipment REBITE 39,704 39,996
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 2,290 2,289
Operating lease rentals in respect of T ARG EEE
land use rights He 135 135
Loss on disposal of property, REVE  BMEK
plant and equipment HEEE = 156
Impairment (reversal of) loss JE W BR FORE
recognised on trade receivables e (BME) 10,393 (34)
Reversal of loss recognised on H A fE W SRRE
other receivables # [0 = (2,532)
Allowance for obsolete inventories [REF S84 12,015 3,935
Equity-settled share-based AR A E AR5
payments > 10,502 16,868
Share of loss (profit) of associates FE{REEE N R ERECER]) 5,495 (2,743)
Operating cash flows before movements & & & S BRI Y4E =
in working capital REME 305,586 310,508
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAGZMm) 97,709 (39,993)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables U E FOR A (38 00) 142,540 (192,245)
Increase in amount due from an associate & U A &) FRAE 0 (4,311) (4,967)
Increase in other receivables and oAt B SR TE K
prepayments TR IR AN (13,058) (5,499)
(Decrease) increase in trade and S BRI R =ik
bills payables CRL) 380 (52,216) 20,431
(Decrease) increase in other payables A A< kI8 Ok 4> ) 3800 (10,252) 24,446
(Decrease) increase in government grants  E T4 8L Rl 2> ) 42 40 (4,020) 13,900
Cash generated from operations KETEEFIENES 461,978 126,581
Taxation paid BEFIE (39,473) (26,830)
Net cash from operating activities K EBATISIR &R 5 422,505 99,751
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
GERERER @

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

2015 ik
Note RMB'O00 54
Mt et ARETTT _
= 2
Investing activities "EES = g:"é
Redemption of other financial assets B HEMErEE 1,324,000 1,149,000
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits EHSRITERER 67,313 1,194,821 2
Withdrawals of pledged bank deposits RN EERRITER 22,430 46,491 2
Interest received B YR 8 16,269 30,359 3§
Investment income received from other EREMEREERE =e
financial assets WA 3,245 13,430 g R
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant REWE  MENRKRE
and equipment WA = 45 ey
Placement of fixed bank deposits FRERTTE SR (38,962) (1,013,572) s
Purchase of other financial assets BEHEMSMEE (1,324,000) (409,000) sEh
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHE BRI TER (40,073) (145,981) o
Capital contribution to an associate HE LN RNRE K — (32,120) -
Purchase of property, plant and BEMERE & g -
equipment B (4,695) (22,960) 3R
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEMERE & EE S5k
property, plant and equipment ENES (29,456) (21,440) 2k
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo B B /8 1 ) 31 — (1,590) g5
Net cash (used in) from ®EEE(FTR)FTiS %
investing activities e FHEE (3,929) 787,483 . =
s la
Financing activities BEEE 8 S
Dividends paid B (134,706) (65,579)  gsg@
Repayment of bank loans BEERITER = (5,453) g™
Share repurchase & (7 Bl 8 (1,135) (2,984)
Purchase of shares under share award RIERR (D SEE T 2B B Sl
scheme Ben) (25,038) (74) §ta
Interest paid EIRE = (48) gEy
Proceeds from issue of shares upon HIT B EMmETTH
exercise of share option B EEES 822 8,173 g
Bank loans raised EERRITER — 5,458 : u
838
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBMAREFE (160,057) (60,507) gn“é%
Net increase in cash and Re RIREFEWEM S
cash equivalents HEE 258,519 826,727 o
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1A1BBRERRESZEEY 1,251,358 423,233 = §§nﬂn
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [EREFHH) /& 3,553 1,398 é gﬁ
So#
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 A31HR & RIRE&EEY 1,513,430 1,251,358 Eéaﬁ
Analysis of the balances of cash and He RBeEEY 5
cash equivalents RO z
Bank balances and cash RITERKRIR® 825,442 983,620 540
Fixed bank deposits which matured 31E A N R EARER1T 7 EA g
within three months EE=N 687,988 267,738 =
1,513,430 1,251,358 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB WK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

116

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
acts as an investment holding company while the Group is
principally engaged in delivering embedded software and
secure payment products for global customers and leveraging
innovative Fintech to provide personalisation service, system
platform and other total solutions for customers in a wide
business range including finance, government, healthcare,
transportation and retails.

The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are set out in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first time in the current
year:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Y
HE

AEBERFEEREMATATHE
ARG ([EEEFEAE])NE
o 2 BN BB W TS ERRERT

BRI EAFIR
A HES

FEGFERF165E HERBEN

KETHE

REBGTER XA
EERYPACTIES BB
EEGIEAF 165 RE: AEM
REREGTER =47
FAVRZERTER
EAVHHEEN  REHE:
F£10%% - AR ERAH

WMELERF125: R B

BB EEER]
F28HZMEFTR
BB SR AER U B £ [F)
FUHRZETR KRR Y
BEA
BB TSRS %R 20125 %
A CHIES 20144 FH
ZEBEE
A
FRE ok

BRATEAIN  RFEHREEY
BHREEANESTHRSR - AARBHAE
B N 6 12 e 2 AR FE B B A 3R 3R AR
oM REMERRTARE
B EXREENTE -

SHEHABZRERAT —B-AFF58 117

Corporate
Information
EER

Financial
Highlights
HRHE

2016 £AER

2016 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis

BEBH AR

Management
EEREREERE

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
EEE®RE

Corporate Governance
Report
LEERBE

Environmental,
Social and Governance

B HERER

BMBHRE

o)
2
=
9]
=
9]
2
©
8
%]
=
v
c
]
=
i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M| R MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

118

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure
Initiative for the first time in the current year. The amendments
to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity needs not provide a specific
disclosure required by an HKFRS if the information resulting
from that disclosure is not material, and give guidance on
the bases of aggregating and disaggregating information.
However, the amendments reiterate that an entity should
consider providing additional disclosures when compliance
with the specific requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to
enable users of financial statements to understand the impact
of particular transactions, events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance.

In addition, the amendments clarify that an entity’s share
of the other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for using the equity method should be
presented separately from those arising from the Group,
and should be separated into the share of items that, in
accordance with other HKFRSs: (i) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the
amendments provide examples of systematic ordering or
grouping of the notes.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively.
The grouping and ordering of certain notes have been revised
to give prominence to the areas of the Group’s activities
that management considers to be the most relevant to an
understanding of the Group’s financial performance and
financial position. Specifically, information to capital risk
management was reordered to note 35 while information to
financial instruments was reordered to note 36. Other than the
above presentation and disclosure change, the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 has not resulted in any impact on
the financial performance or financial position of the Group in
these consolidated financial statements.

R
‘—/iE—EIJE’\JEk,%Pﬂ )

ERETERE1E 2]
ZREFTFHM @

AN MENERE - BRIREHRT
RGPk S R E TR P F o

o

AEBEKREBHAE &%@L%{J
E %MWEmﬁfﬁ FHECHIES
RHE Wﬁﬁﬁm$ﬁlm%
ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁ#ﬂ?ﬁ%%?ﬁ i
TR -  ERREREREFEENHEHEE
WssEeMTAGEREFHFES
B 5E36 o BR A b B sl & 3% 55 A ok 2
G - BB EFTERIF 1R ASF] RAEE
WEBEAEBMNGRAETBHREFH
BT RIA RIS AR BB (R & -

SHEHABZERERAT —T—nEFH 119

Corporate
Information
EER

Highlights
HRHE

Financial

2016 £AER

2016 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
and Analysis Statement

BEBH AR

REERE

Management
=

BER

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
EEE®RE

Environmental, Corporate Governance
Report
LEERBE

Social and Governance
B HERER

BMBHRE

o)
2
=
9]
=
9]
2
©
8
%]
=
v
c
]
=
i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M| R MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

120

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

&
& 2 Al AV BR A a0

C 9870 1B & R A LAY FTRT 2
RIEST BB B REER

AEBYERFEAUATERMESR
REMZ T RRIETBEV B RS

effective:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the
Related Amendments!
HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based
Payment Transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts!

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture3
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative4

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

Bt 75 ¥R R Y EE ()
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material
impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. In addition, the expected credit loss model
may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarification to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in future may result in more disclosure, however,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognized in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
operating lease payments as operating cash flows. Under the
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flow.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognized assets for
prepaid lease payment for leasehold lands where the Group
is a lease. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they are owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosure are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group as lessee has non-
cancellable operating lease commitment of approximately
RMB5,805,000 in note 32. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result in changes in measurements,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the directors of the Company complete
the review.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("Companies Ordinance”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair-value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generally unit) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generally unit) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generally unit). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’'s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable the future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when there
has been a transfer of risks and rewards to the customer,
no further work or processing is required by the Group,
the quantity and quality of the goods has been determined
with reasonable accuracy and standard, the price is fixed or
determinable, and collectability is reasonable assured. This is
generally when title passes and the goods have been delivered
to the designated locations for the sales of magnetic strip
cards, smart cards and the related personalisation services.
Revenue from the sales of on-site card issuance equipment
and the related revenue from the provision of on-site card
issuance system solutions are recognised when the equipment
are delivered and the services are provided at the designated
locations and after inspection of the equipment.

3.

EREEEERERAA

FESTTEE @

REE QT 2R m@m)

EEGFEAEIRZATARERE
EABERAKERBERRZWE
ERTMRERRE - MFE - ZEK
Bza2GHE(EERE) ERER
BEENEIFUNE-—BEN TR
ERLEBRETKOeRE(NEREESR
AFERBERAZREE)BRHEE
EITRERR - R ERBERSRE
BZEREREEN D - BEM
BER 2 ERHEEEZARE 2K
BERERBNZERTREESS
FTERIFE 365 R ©

Wy 325 B2

W IR KRR ERREN D AEE
AR CRELREBBARTREER
an Mo 12 4 AR 765 1 e R A 2 88 - 0N
BRIT R sH SRR IR -

WSS BEEHWA ENTE - RAK
MEENDERE SR AR REARE
B0 E— B R ERED R e
VAR HERR - BBt T

HWEmERNEEREEERTER -
AEEBRETE- S TIFENEE -
ERNBENEERNHRBTESIEE
METE BRCRELAVTEE - I
Arlmitee e BEE - Ble®R
KAEHETmA W o 51 iH & IF
T BRERRABEERERSEM
FARE-REEBRAAELE
0 B3R E 15 7 B R T SR U 2R o Bh 8N
EERREOWEARRHRERRER
R RMEANKENS @ SERME
REE T A C IR A B RS S B
Wik R A B et o

—E2-xEFR 133

Corporate
Information
EER

Financial
Highlights
HRHE

2016 £AER

2016 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis
BEBH AR

Management
EEREREERE

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
EEE®RE

Corporate Governance
Report
LEERBE

CHERER

Environmental,
Social and Governance

BE

BMBHRE

o)
3]
=
9]
=
9]
2
©
8
%]
=
v
c
]
=
i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M| R MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments in subsidiaries is recognised
when the owners’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Such construction in progress
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property, plant and equipment commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016

3.

FESTTEER @

W 25 7 58 ()

B % B E W R B U AR AR A 25 1 7]
ERARSEHERENASETERAS
B HER - MEWANRBELELS
ZARAEBEASNERNERMN XG
8 BRMERTIEMEFERRSKRA
Y BEENTBRFREREREZ
BEENFZEARNEESFFEN
GRS

REWB AR EMARES AN
HR 3R TR B 4 T B 37 P e R (TR AR T A 2
ABERMARR B R W FERE S ] Se 5t

BH) o

MR BENRRE

mE - BELREB(TREEZTRE)
BB E R E REHTE R REHRE
EENE)RIINEA M BIRRE

ERUELE  HELTHEAENY
212 AN R AE ] B HE RRURL (B & 18 5
ReRABRREXERALINAERE
EMs  REAKRENSTHREARN
ERIEERA - ZEMETIRKTIK
WA RAEREREHRBESEER
AEOME  BEMRE RFEER
HEMYMEEERARNOEE  REF
BEARAEREREERIGET R
= o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% — 33'/3%
Motor vehicles 10% — 20%
Plant and machinery 10%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Land use rights

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating
leases.

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interests in land
are accounted for as operating leases and are stated at cost
and released over the lease term on a straight line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

3 the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016

3.

FESTTEER @

BEKA

WiE - ERALEETERENEEE
FERERERET AIHEAERE
RERNEENEE) EREBHOB R
ADFAZFEENRAE HEEZRF
BEAIAHERARERAERHE
ALk e

P EL A A SR AR AR B SRR R
AR -

mEEHR

MEEADNERARELHEER R
% o

EEATAEREDERERS - 75
A HER AR B R 3 (A ER IR B R &R
BOMABELENELEE

s HERMEEKRZELEEAEE
A ERAREERAITH

e EEEABRETKAEAHHLE
BN BE

s FBRNEAIHLEZETEE

o RIETA S I E R AR
Flz

o  BRAMKM - HMEMEIR
TR ERANEEZETE
E R

o REMAELERE NS GO
SUTESTLE R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit)
in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-currents are recognised as
government grants in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under
local sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of
sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the Group’s obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, amounts
due from subsidiaries, amount due from an associate, pledged
bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the loans and receivables have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loan and receivable is reduced
by the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified either as financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entity are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
in recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and it further excludes items that are not taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016

3.

FESTTEER @

BT Hm@m)

RIEHER

EEREEWIE S RENEOEN
BRI SACHEMEEAREEM
BRNBANDERKLLEORER TH
EER  ARESTERIERS A

REERIIBERSMEER - HEE
BEEEABKRKERRENZERNER
R o

AEBEENASEREERELR - I
HREMERIEERSRAE - RLE
ERANEHABMNREERED N RE
HRENZERBDMER -

BiIE

PIT 15 153 78 S 8 B B0 A 75 78 SR SE 7
IHRYARM e

BNERFE A TR IR TO IR AR F JE /0 FEER TR A
HatE - BRBABRGA B R HE
fit 2 H A KR 2 89 BR B AT AR A
Rl R EET A A A
R AT MBI KTIAE - AEBE A
HHRBEABENERBSHRERTH
ER L2 RITHBRGTHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements of each group entity are prepared in
the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (its functional currency).

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve).

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant leases.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit scheme and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF") are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve. For share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share award scheme

When the trustee of the share award scheme purchases the
Company’s shares from the open market, the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs,
is presented as shares held under share award scheme and
deducted from total equity. No gain or loss is recognised on
the transactions of the Company’s own shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The directors of the Company review the aging analysis of
trade receivables at the end of each reporting period and
identify the long-aged receivables that are no longer probably
to be recovered in the future. The Group considers the aging
of trade receivables, credit portfolio of the debtors, default or
significant delay on payments and makes necessary allowance
for doubtful debt where appropriate. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a further impairment
loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables were RMB339,970,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debt of approximately RMB17,431,000) (2015:
carrying amounts of RMB492,903,000 net of allowance for
doubtful debt of approximately RMB7,226,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated allowance for inventories

The Group carries out inventory review at the end of each
reporting period and provides allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories.

The directors of the Company reviews the inventory aging
analysis at the end of each reporting period and identifies
slow-moving inventories and obsolete inventories that are no
longer suitable for use in production or sales. The directors
of the Company estimate the allowance for inventories based
on aging of inventories, technology changes and current
market demand. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts
and circumstances, a further impairment loss may arise. The
carrying amounts of inventories of the Group amounted to
RMB211,212,000 (2015: RMB320,936,000) and allowance for
inventories was RMB46,025,000 (2015: RMB34,010,000) as at
year ended 31 December 2016.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

Segment information has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports which are reviewed by the
Chairman of the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker, in order to allocate resources to the operating and
reportable segments and to assess their performance.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

Embedded software
and secure
payment products

- Embedded software and secure payment
products for smart secure payment

Platform and services - Provision of personalisation service,
(Note) system platforms and other total
solutions for customers in a wide
business range including financial,
government, healthcare, transportation
and retails by leveraging innovative
Fintech

Note: With the evolving technologies and the Group’s business advancement,
previous operating and reportable segments of “Personalisation service”
and “Card issuance system solutions” are now transforming into business
nature of “Platform and service”. “Personalisation service” segment
was merging with “Card issuance system solutions” segment with the
introduction of new platform service during the reporting period. To
better describe the Group’s current and future business nature, the
segment of “Platform and service” is adopted to replace “Personalisation
service” and “Card issuance system solutions”.

Each operating and reportable segment derives its turnover
from the sales of products or provision of services. They are
managed separately because each product requires different
production and marketing strategies. For segment reporting,
these individual operating segments have been aggregated
into a single reportable segment due to similar nature of the
products and services.

Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables for goods sold or services rendered to
outside customers during the year.

Segments results represent the gross profit earned by each
segment.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segment:

Sales to external parties of REBEIREBR R

ZHE
— embedded software and  — Ex AT E AN
secure payment products TEYNEMR 1,164,688
— platform and service — Fa kR 229,025

5. EXERIHER @)

AT BASERA HREDFE D E
EENEENN

Turnover Results

EES ES

2015 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTIT

1,389,907 321,454 329,042
294,725 97,548 115,958

1,393,713

1,684,632 419,002 445,000

Research and development i 3% B A

costs (98,050) (79,539)
Other operating expenses HiEE &M (165,086) (143,073)
Other income, expenses, HaA - &H -

gains or losses Wessi B 1R 77,926 40,737
Interest income FEWA 16,269 30,359
Share of profit of (loss) JE{G B A A (E8)

associates il (5,495) 2,743
Finance costs BT R AR — (48)
Profit before taxation B A5 A A 244,566 296,179

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

The Chairman of the Company makes decisions according
to the operating results of each segment. No information of
segment assets and liabilities is available for the assessment
of performance of different business activities. Therefore, no
information about segment assets and liabilities are presented.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016

B D B2 & 5 IR R B T 37
MAREZ @ ERR 2 -

ARABEFRBE D BKEREEL
RE -BENDBEELBBEERATH
AR NRIZEBEB R RIR - Bt
WEERDHBEELBEER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMIEHRRMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 A& Z=2016F12A31RA L2 FE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. &2£IEFR9IFER @

(Continued)

Other information HaErR

Corporate
Information
EER

= 2
2 ol
258
Turnover from external customers attributed to the Group AREEFREIISPERHLEBIRE R L
by location of the operations of customers is presented as R LPTIEME| D 250 : E
follows: gu
5K
Si
2015 =g
RMB’000 5
ARBFL
55
g EW
Turnover EER Sa
— PRC (excluding the special administrative — B (BREH & -
regions of Hong Kong and Macau) SR PSR RITT R R ) 1,290,826 1,585,486 § e
— Overseas — I 102,887 99,146 28]
E'EM
1,393,713 1,684,632 o “Eﬁ
s
Information about the Group’s non-current assets except for AEBKBRS T AN Z A IERE 5
financial instruments by location of assets is presented as BERAEHEID 2RMOT : §“§§§u
below: g éﬁ
g 5
=
2015 s -
RMB’000 o
ARBTIT -1
2e8
gl
HK BB 11,946 14,545
PRC F EY 230,692 240,457 € w
Philippines SEEE 700 1,671 01?
o ol
TR
5 4
243,338 256,673 §
Information about major customers EBRTEEFNER = §§§n
5 9
For the year ended 31 December 2016, there was one HZE2016FE12A31HILZEE © Rk gﬁﬁ
customer with turnover of RMB181,739,000 in aggregate ARBEMZ 2T HESFNESL BB Zim
(2015: two customers with turnover of RMB282,825,000 AWM — LR E L a A\ B ;3%

and RMB233,193,000 respectively) from the segments of
both embedded software and secure payment products and
platform and services which accounted for more than 10% of
the Group's total turnover.

181,739,0007T (2015 FME B &
¥:mH Rl A AR282,825,0007TF A
R #233,193,0007T) ' EAREBERL
EFEMN10%A L »

BMBHRE
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2
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

154

OTHER INCOME 6. HtWA
2015
RMB’'000
ARBTIT
Government grants BT 2 Bh 18,359 10,695
Interest income FE YA 16,269 30,359
Investment income from other HEihSmEE
financial assets IS E WA 3,245 13,430
Value-added tax refund 18 (E Fi iR Fi 24,081 15,788
Others Hib 1,302 202
63,256 70,474
OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 7. HthlsmiEsia
2015
RMB’000
AREF T
Impairment loss (recognised) reversed on U E FURE
trade receivables (Bl (10,393) 34
Impairment loss reversed on H A & R
other receivables BB o] — 2,532
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE R
and equipment HiEEE — (156)
Net exchange gain (loss) P& 5 Wz (182K /558 41,332 (1,788)
30,939 622
FINANCE COSTS 8. B
2015
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARRAFRBHEEDN
repayable within five years IRITEFRHF]E = (48)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 A& Z=2016F12A31RA L2 FE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

9. HimlAE

2015
RMB’'000
ARBTFIT
Profit before taxation has been arrived B ATAEE 0k
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) EE=ME(E10) 17,470 16,920
Other staff costs H A S B 164,275 155,097
Other staff’s equity-settled Hibfg B AR EE
share-based payments B A% 1D S A~ 7,866 12,812
Other staff’s retirement benefits HAth & B RIKAEF
scheme contributions sTEIE K 5,044 4,767
194,655 189,596
Allowance for obsolete inventories STAHEKANRER
included in cost of sales B 12,015 3,935
Amortisation of intangible assets EREERE 2,290 2,289
Auditor’s remuneration % B AT BN <& 1,528 1,366
Depreciation of property, plant M - HERREITE
and equipment 39,704 39,996
Operating lease rentals in respect of Eithvitka
— land use rights — bR A 135 135
— office premises — WAE 7,571 7,881
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAERS 2 FERA 810,375 1,062,829

SHERBZERERAT —B-—AEFH 155

Corporate
Information
EER

Highlights
HRHE

Financial

2016 £AER

2016 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis

BEBH AR

Management
ESREREERE

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
EEE®RE

Corporate Governance
Report
LEERBE

Environmental,
Social and Governance

B HERER

BMBHRE

o)
2
=
9]
=
9]
2
©
8
%]
=
v
c
]
=
i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

10.

156

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 10. £ - EEHTEHEAN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEHMEEMS
EMPLOYEES
2015
RMB’'000
ARBFIT
Directors’ fees EE - 572 537
Other emoluments to executive directors HEMTRITESHHE
— basic salaries and allowances — EARE S HEA 7,916 6,941
— bonus — D4 6,278 5,311
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — B K@ F5HE1 4 2k 68 75
— equity-settled share-based payments — ARERSEE
BIRR 19 2 A 2,636 4,056
17,470 16,920

The bonus of the directors was determined with reference
to the Group’s performance, individual performances and
comparable market statistics.

Mr. Hou Ping is also the chief executive (“the Chief Executive”)

of the Company and his emoluments disclosed below include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2016

ESEN0AKRBARERE @AK
BUARAILEM TSGRt ERETE

EFEEBRAAREFATE © b
M eE TRIRE - BREFLHEE
SERATE RIBRRT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10.

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

18 48538 A 2 b 7 4 B T 28 = 4 ) 3
BrRERERHTEAFEZ M
m -

2015
RMB’000
ARBFIT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Mr. Lu Run Ting ERELE
— basic salaries and allowances — EARE S MER 3,621 3,305
— bonus — D4 3,032 2,482
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — iR4RTEFIET {2k 16 15
— equity-settled share-based payments — UEnEE
B AD S A 1,189 1,830
7,858 7,632
Mr. Lu Runyi EHEBEE
— basic salaries and allowances — HARF & MERL 1,074 861
— bonus — DAL 736 691
— retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ — 3ERAEFIEH 2|42 16 12
— equity-settled share-based payments — UEnEE
BIRR (7 1+ 643 989
2,469 2,553
Mr. Hou Ping BEE &
— basic salaries and allowances — AR MER, 2,457 2,020
— bonus — D4 2,426 2,021
— retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ — R4RTE FIEF 21 20 16 33
— equity-settled share-based payments — RS
"R S A~ 482 742
5,381 4,816
Mr. Lu Xiaozhong E/NREE
— basic salaries and allowances — AR MER, 764 755
— bonus — DAL 84 117
— retirement benefits scheme contributions ~— — RIKIEFIEF 2 20 20 15
— equity-settled share-based payments — UEREE
HIRR (0 SZ 1+ 322 495
1,190 1,382
16,898 16,383
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R EE (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

10.

158

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

FRATEE ST EZREEERN
RARAEEEHZRGE -

2015
RMB’000
ARETTT
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BV FEHI1TESE
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin BOKFRITEE
— directors’ fees — e 230 215
Mr. Zhu Lijun KRIFRE
— directors’ fees — e 171 161
Mr. Liu John Jianhua B SL A
— directors’ fees — e 171 161
Total /INEt 572 537

The independent non-executive director’'s emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

10.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

The five highest paid individuals for the year ended
31 December 2016 included three (2015: three) directors
of the Company, details of whose remuneration are set out
above. The remuneration of the remaining highest paid
individuals who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company during the year were as follows:

REE2016F12 A3 BZ2EE RS
SHMALBE=A(20155F « =41)
EE O HEMEeFBER LR -KBRES
FERWNTEN  AFERTHRS
A LHBEST

2015
RMB’000
AREFIT
Employees {=3=|

— basic salaries and allowances — HARFH S MERL 2,380 2,220
— bonus — D4 1,166 1,088
— retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ — R4RTEFIEF 21 20 63 63

— equity-settled share-based payments — UEREE
HIRR (7 1+ 643 987
4,252 4,358

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

BREEUINIESHEMALOABET
RBENA :

Number of employees

BEAH

2015

Up to HKD 1,000,000

HKD 1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000

1,000,000/ ¥ 8 LA T

1,000,0018 % %= 1,500,000/%5 % — =
1,500,0018 % Z=2,000,000/%5 % — =
2,000,001 % 22,500,000/ % 2 =
2,500,001 5% %2 3,000,000/%8 ¥ = 2

During the year, no remuneration were paid by the Group
to the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There
was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

EREEEERERAA

REAFEAR  AEERERESFHA
2FEMESAL(BEREZERES)X
RN B £ 15 ARSI B INAK
SEOMME R EBANEE - L8
EXFERATERNFARERRAE
BEEFAME -
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11.

160

TAXATION 1. BIE
2015
RMB'000
ARBTIT
The charge comprises: S HBE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B 1 ZEATIS A
("EIT") ([ZFEHL) (29,544) (39,865)
Underprovision of EIT in prior years BEFEMSHEETR (2,525) (2,583)
(32,069) (42,448)
PRC withholding tax on dividend distribution  F& 2 % JE &9 BB (20,234) (1,300)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBENIEH = (1,252)
(52,303) (45,000)
Deferred taxation (note 28) EERIA (KT 7228) 12,637 (9,341)
(39,666) (54,341)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The PRC income tax is calculated at the applicable rates in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to EIT at 25%
except that Goldpac Limited is approved for 3 years as
enterprise that satisfied as a High-New Technology Enterprise
and entitles the preferential tax rate of 15% in 2014, 2015
and 2016.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No. 1, only
the profits earned by Goldpac Limited prior to 1 January 2008,
when distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered
with the exemption from withholding tax. Whereas, pursuant
to Articles 3 and 27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its
Implementation Rules, dividend distributed out of the profit
generated thereafter, shall be subject to EIT at 10% or
reduced tax rate if tax treaty or arrangement applies. Under
the relevant tax arrangement, withholding tax rate on dividend
distribution to the qualifying Hong Kong resident companies is
5%. Deferred tax liability on the undistributed profits earned
since 1 January 2008 have been accrued at the tax rate of 5%.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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REMPERMERH  EeHEFARA
AEHREARMBEMEE AR
20144 ~ 20154 2016 F Z % 15%
BB o

R IE B R K B R 7% 48 B B % (2008)
FIRB A B RARINEEEED
DIRE - RBE S HBEFRARN2008
F1 A1 8 2RI FE A 2 fTEN
i A - RIBREMBRIEEIKK
271G EEHAMAIEIERTE - UE
BEEMFEBEDIRKRER © HZ10%
gk (M B 4R 95 Bk 2 b A ) SRR A0
KEYMPEMGH - RIBMABHKE
B 2 EFEEREBEERAFAKE
RFBEI R R A5% ° 8200841818
BRDNNASREFABEEHESMLEE
125 % MR REHE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

11.

E o B IR A I3 B E AR

TAXATION (Continued) 11. ﬁlﬁ(%) g‘éﬁ
Tax charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation FERBX HERATN B ERNAT
as follows: ggg
L
2015 T
RMB’000 %
ARETFT e
'%kﬂ'
oL
Profit before taxation [ 758 A A 244,566 296,179 s~
Tax at the applicable income IRERFFSFHRTE fEg
tax rate (Note) BB IE (HT5E) (61,142) (25.0) (74,045) (25.0) BEN
Tax effect of expenses not AT HOFL 5 2 BB 7 o
deductible for tax purpose 2 (6,682) (2.7) (4,245) (1.4) s
Tax effect of income not BEINFHWA RIS IR
taxable for tax purpose S 13,968 5.7 4,214 1.4 E%Q
Tax effect of deductible SRR AT R £5%
temporary difference EHENTBEE SE2m
not recognised (5,538) (2.3) (342) (0.1) é S
Tax effect of tax concession  HF—RHBEHE QA -
granted to a PRC subsidiary FiIBEENH BT L 31,310 12.8 31,821 10.7 2, m
Tax effect of tax losses RIER Z TG EH 3 %{@
not recognised RIS & (86) (0.0) — — = E,’mi
Tax effect of different tax rate £ ELb 575 a) A8 & § %’ﬁ
of subsidiaries operating in LRE M B A B 5
other tax jurisdiction TRABMENHBTE — — 793 0.3 o
Tax effect of share of FE(E B AR (EE) : gﬁ
(loss) profit of associates A 2 BT 2 (1,374) (0.6) 686 0.2 g5
PRC withholding tax on RAEEFER
undistributed earnings EmH (7.597) (3.1)  (10,640) 3.6) &
Underprovision of EIT BEFELEMSH s &
in prior years BB R (2,525) (1.0) (2,583) (0.9) 828
[
Tax charge and effective FEMBEZHR §
tax rate for the year B R (39,666) (16.2) (54,341) (18.4) 5
-G
Note: The rate applied is the applicable tax rate in the PRC where the operation M : FMAREAREEEEEL P ENEA é %%
of the Group is substantially based. i o 5 %#d
zZ o
At 31 December 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of R20165F12A318 - AEET ARE -2k
RMB345,000 (2015: nil) available for offset against future HARRANZ A FEROHBEEEA ”
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation R #345,00070 (2015 : &) - BRK g
to the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future REFOTAEREE - WL ERE W s
profit streams. Losses may be carried forward indefinitely. AEANBEEERREEMEHE _%%
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11.

12.

162

TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of RMB71,234,000 (2015: RMB49,014,000)
in relation to allowance for doubtful debt and obsolete
inventories. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that the temporary differences can be utilized in
foreseeable future.

DIVIDENDS

11. HIE @)

R2016F12A31H  AEBRER
REFERGENAINMBREREEZER
AR #71,234,0007T (2015 : AR
49,014,0007T) ° FAEA] T8 R AR 2R
RAEFERAIBERE=ENKE -
WAL A A R T R EEER
RETEE o

12. BB

2015
RMB'000
ARETT

2016 Interim — HK4.0 cents per ordinary
share (declared on 16 August 2016 and
based on 834,029,000 shares)

2016 F FEHRHE — Tk
SRR EEEA 01

(201688 16HTIK °

E74834,029,000/%)

28,322 —

2015 Final — HK11.0 cents per ordinary
share (declared on 16 March 2016 and
based on 834,029,000 shares)

2015FFERE — B
TBALE 11,01

(FR2016F3816HET K °

£74834,029,0000%)

76,389 =

2015 Special — HK4.0 cents per ordinary
share (declared on 16 March 2016 and
based on 834,029,000 shares)

2015F FEHFRIES —
RS A 4. 01l

(201638 16HT K °

H74834,029,000/%)

27,778 —

2014 Final — HK10.0 cents per ordinary
share (declared on 19 March 2015 and
based on 831,573,000 shares)

2014 FFERH — B
BT B EE10.01

(M2015F3 198 T K »

£72831,573,0000%)

— 65,579

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK7.0 cents (2015: HK11.0 cents) and a special dividend of
HK6.0 cents (2015: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2016 have been proposed
by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & E2016512A31R L2 FE

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BIREZF

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

BRANRBMAA AN RER K
BN TIRBIA T BIRETE -

E—
5
o
bl

2015
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RMB'000 L%
ARMFR  Ze
Earnings R cEy
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings & & ME AR FIFTEEH £ EE
per share (profit for the year attributable EOPERIEN/NEIESTEUN at
to owners of the Company) EEFERE) 204,900 241,838 <
'000 S5E
Flgr  ics
=
Number of shares R EE E ég%;
Weighted average number of ordinary ST EERERRF AT 8 S
shares for the purpose of basic earnings R A N 5 A% 8K §§ﬁ
per share 833,856 831,348 a
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BEEEE NN EBIRNTE 5l
— Pre-IPO share options (note 30) — BARFRBEERIERE é.gﬁﬁ"
=t &I (Afat30) — 10,362 @ O
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREE BT AT R A ;E: -
shares for the purpose of diluted INHEF AR & & 3u
earnings per share 833,856 841,710 g“i‘iﬁ
3
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not AERENTEERINAEE NI %m
assume the exercise of the Company’s options for the year MDEHTEER  CrEE5REBEER % g;&n
ended 31 December 2016 because the exercise price of those FIEW RBENREHE2016F12A31H géﬂ
options was higher than the average market price for shares in WFZEERNEEREITE o =
the current year. . § *
The diluted earning per share was presented for the year AR BE R AFRERNERENTZE - é
ended 31 December 2015 due to the effect of Pre-IPO share HE2015F 12831 Itz EEEZ7 E%
options. FREEAF) =
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

164

14. 9% - BRERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles machinery  in progress Total
ffh %8
BF e AE  BRERES HRIR h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TT  ARETR  AR%Tn  ARETR  AR%Tn  ARETx
cosT BA
At 1 January 2015 1201551418 57,732 27,666 4,255 218,794 13,162 321,609
Currency realignment BEAN - 31 12 — — 43
Additions WE = 13,006 1,224 14,902 20,568 49,700
Acquired on acquisition of RYE-ZHBRARRE
a subsidiary — — 217 — - 27
Disposals RE = (556) (667) (3.337) = (4,560)
Transfers & — — — 7758 (7,758) —
At 31 December 2015 #2015%12A31H 57,732 40,147 5,041 238117 25972 367,009
Currency realignment BEAZ - 38 58 - - 9%
Additions NE = 4417 173 3,929 2,608 11,127
Disposals RE = (127) (199) (44) = (370)
Transfers & — — — 6,029 (6,029) =
At 31 December 2016 R2016512531H 57,132 44,475 5,073 248,031 22,551 377,862
DEPRECIATION il ]
At 1 January 2015 R2015E1 A1 18,342 15,174 2,136 99,584 - 135,236
Currency realignment AR - 16 12 - - 28
Provided for the year EEEE 2,900 4,488 344 32,264 - 39,99
Eliminated on disposals RERHH - (614) (603) (3,142 - (4,359)
At 31 December 2015 20158127318 21,242 19,064 1,889 128,706 — 170,901
Currency realignment MERE - 28 20 - - 48
Provided for the year EEEE 2,900 6,215 543 30,046 = 39,704
Eliminated on disposals RERE - (127) (199) (44) — (370)
At 31 December 2016 #2016E12A31H 24142 25,180 2,253 158,708 — 210,283
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 #2016E12A31H 33,590 19,295 2,820 89,323 22,551 167,579
At 31 December 2015 #2015E12A31H 36,490 21,083 3,152 109,411 25972 196,108

The Group’s buildings are erected on land held under

medium-term land use rights in the PRC.
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14.

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% - BERRZR®E@®
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than BREETRRI Pt - ME MK
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated B EEETBEER  IREFTH
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated FRERNIZ TV ERABHGEER
residual values, using the straight-line method, as follows: E :
Buildings 5% EE 5%
Furnitures, fixtures and equipment 20% - 33'/3% L~ HRENEE  20% -33:%
Motor vehicles 10% — 20% VaE 10% - 20%
Plant and machinery 10% R E K23 10%
LAND USE RIGHTS 15. T b fE A #E
The balance represents the prepayment of rentals for medium- ERIEM NP B FRS0F R H T i
term land use rights situated in the PRC for a period of 50 FRENFEMES -
years.
GOODWILL 16. B2
RMB'000
ARBTTT
COST AND CARRYING VALUE B N BREE
At 1 January 2015 M2015F1H18 —
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) W BB P8 X BIE A 2 B (AYaE31) 1,375
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 20156128318 Kk
2016412 A31H 1,375
Management of the Group determined that there was no EIEER A HE2015F %2016412
impairment in the CGU (i.e. embedded software and secure A31H  BEemEHESESSEMN(A
payment products) containing the goodwill during the year MAREEME RS NER) W EES
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. SAE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BLEE

Trademarks
EiE
RMB’000
ARBFIT
COST 2N
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R2015F1A18 + 2015612 A31H
31 December 2016 X%2016%F12H31H 18,318
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2015 20151 H1H 2,483
Charge for the year FIEEH 2,289
At 31 December 2015 2015412 H31H 4,772
Charge for the year FEEN 2,290
At 31 December 2016 mW2016F12H31H 7,062
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12H31H 11,256
At 31 December 2015 M2015%F12H31H 13,546

The amount represents the trademarks registered in Hong

ZEERTNER - BFI R BEEM

Kong, Macau and the PRC, with finite useful lives and are MEE WEEEEREEEHAFR -

amortised on a straight line basis over the periods of 5 to 9

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
=g 2 e A )

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE E2016512A31R L2 FE

18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REFE N A 2 W&
2015
RMB’000
ARETTT
Unlisted investments in associates, KERIELET2BE AR
at cost R 32,120 32,120
Exchange realignment ME H R 216 137
Share of post-acquisition results and reserves fE{E# & Was M FE & 716 6,200
33,052 38,457
Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting RN &S B R AN & B B = A7) 2 5 48
period are as follows: SR :
Proportion of issued
Country of ordinary share
incorporation capital indirectly
Name of entity and operation held by the Group Principal activity
22PN
HERENWE
ERER R FELER BOETBERZMGE FEEK
Kaixin Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 45% 45% Investment holding
S BIERBRAF EBERRHE i /NG|
Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc. Philippines 45% 45% Personalisation service
JFEE 8 AMEARTS
Sichuan Zhongruan PRC 19.68%  19.68% Smart city platform
Technology Ltd. (“SCZR") (Note) (Note)
IR ERRER AR Y (Ktz) (fii) BEHTEE
(Mem)leEe )
Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over SCZR because it Mt - REEREE )| P EBMEAZE - FE
has the power to appoint two out of the seven directors of that company RIEPII|FEZ N Al ZEFE - RNEEFREE
under the Article of Association of that company. R +EEFEFHIFE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R MR (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

18.

19.

168

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REtE N Bl 2R @)
Aggregate information of associates that ERIEE KEE QB ELR
are not individually material (==
2015
RMB’000
AREFTT
The Group's share of (loss) profit REE FE(E (ETE ) & H (5,495) 2,743
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s Et& R Az 2
interests in these associates RS RBEast 33,052 38,457
INVENTORIES 19. &
2015
RMB’000
AR¥EFTT
Raw materials R 162,974 215,431
Work in progress S 4,939 12,213
Finished goods X 43,299 93,292
211,212 320,936
Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR5 S R OR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 A& Z=2016F12A31RA L2 FE

20.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

20. EIWE R

2015

RMB’'000

ARBTIT

Trade receivables FEUE R 323,709 470,307
Retentions held by customers BEPEAENRE K 16,261 22,596
339,970 492,903

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices
are normally payable in 30 to 150 days by the customers
from date of issuance while retentions held by customers
are normally payable between 6 months to 1 year by the
customers from the date of issuance of invoices. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debt presented based on the date of delivery of
goods which approximated the respective dates on which
revenue was recognised:

HEEFNNRIEREZARE - B#E
—RERA B B EARRET30R £ 150H A
EELN  MBEFHANRER —K
REHEZAHEF SEAZ—FR
T o MEWRN B E(EE B WS E
RAMAE) 27 EKER (KRR
IREE ) BREE DATAO T ©

2015
RMB’000
ARBFIT

Age AR
0 - 90 days 0-90H 223,697 358,590
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 58,413 66,387
181 - 365 days 181E365H 36,801 42,270
Over 1 year (Note) il —F (f) 21,059 25,656
339,970 492,903

Note: Included in the above balance aged over one year at 31 December 2016
were retentions held by customers for sales of goods of RMB7,256,000
(31 December 2015: RMB12,703,000).

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

et © _ER2016412 531 H BRiiEi8 — FHIA4
BREHEEEFPHEYHEEMisARIRE
FBARE7,256,0007T (2015412 A31
HAARK12,703,0007T) °

ARER B L L T e B R

O
R °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R MR (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

20.

170

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2016, included in the Group's trade
receivable balances are trade receivables with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB16,800,000 (2015: RMB13,144,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss as counterparties have
sound financial background.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
is as follows:

20. EWEF @)

MR2016F 12 A31H » KEEE WK
EXEHRTEEREREARAR
# 16,800,000 T ( 2015 : A R #&
13,144,00070) MBI E R » 2 S 750H
REBHE @S - BEASE AR
REBEFTIRER WIHHRE A
BRI BE= °

B 380 5 8 5 A (8 40 B 0K 3 e B
o :

2015
RMB’000
ARETTT

Age BRER
91 - 180 days 91-180H 2,959 5,969
181 — 365 days 181%£365H 8,184 3,151
Over 1 year HBiE—F 5,657 4,024
16,800 13,144

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the debtors
since the credit was granted and up to the reporting date.

No interest is charged on trade receivables. Allowance on
trade receivables are made based on estimated irrecoverable
amounts from the sales of goods or provision of services by
reference to past default experience, and by aging and credit
portfolio of each debtor.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR5 S R OR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 A& Z=2016F12A31RA L2 FE

20.

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EWE F )
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debt are as follows: RERBEEEWOT -
2015
RMB'000
ARBFIT
At 1 January ®1A1H 7.226 7,260
Impairment (reversal of) loss recognised T PE W R IB RE A ) BE
on receivables (#mE) 10,393 (34)
Bad debts written off B SHEER (188) =
At 31 December ®12A831H 17,431 7,226

At the end of the reporting period, the allowance for doubtful
debt represented individually impaired trade receivables which
have been overdue for a long time and the directors of the
Company consider that the recoverability of these debts are
low based on historical experience.

RE|BEHR - RERBEEE ERRER
WER ZERECEH-—BRER
B BARAEERR  REEER
B WEZERAENEETAK -

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. H B R A RKRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2015
RMB’'000
ARBTTT
Rental and utility deposits He RKEHE 1,936 1,943
Tender deposits (Note) RIFRER (K7) 16,793 5,296
Deposits paid to suppliers SR EEENES 9,243 835
Prepayments to the Trustee ERETENR
(as defined in note 30(c)) (2 EH1:£30(c) 1,342 8,302
Other prepayments and deposits HEMBENTKEES 3,333 3,213
32,647 19,589

Note: Included in the balance was bidding deposit for acquisition of land as
disclosed in note 40 of RMBS8,010,000 (2015 nil).

Hfat : AZEF EFTHT 405 15 58 9 B 4L i 1 1 B %
Ze AR#8 010,000 (2015 : F) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R MR (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

22.

23.

24.

172

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand. An amount of approximately RMB869,000 (2015:
RMB814,000) is expected to be repayable after one year,
and the amount is therefore shown as non-current. For the
remaining amount of approximately RMB8,409,000 (2015:
RMB4,153,000), the amount is repayable on demand.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered
into a provisional sale and purchase agreement with Junefield
(Beijing Hong Kong) Development Company Limited (the
“Vendor”), an independent third party, to acquire 13th floor
of Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre on No.56 Gloucester
Road, Hong Kong (the “Property”) at a consideration of
HKD 178,000,000 (equivalent to RMB154,174,000). As at
31 December 2016, deposits amounted to HKD32,930,000
(equivalent to RMB29,456,000) was placed to the Vendor.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, FIXED BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The pledged bank deposits are pledged for bills
payables and carry interest at the prevailing market interest
rate ranging from 0.3% to 4.13% (2015: 0.50% to 4.13%)
per annum.

Bank balances held by the Group carry interest at the rate of
0% to 1% (2015: 0.30% to 1.12%) per annum.

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group and the Company are
denominated in RMB and carry interest at the rate of 0.42%
to 3.77% (2015: 0.75% to 4.13%) per annum. Included in
the balance as at 31 December 2016, RMB 110,000,000 (2015:
RMB110,000,000) of fixed bank deposits are carried with
original maturity over one year.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016

22.

23.

24,

FEUR B & X R K

EHAERIER B MIREE KA B
RREE - B4 AR ®869,0005T
(2015 : AEE#814,0007T) FE &t A1
FrREE BAURAFRBEE - £
#) AR #8,409,0007T (2015 1 AREE
4,153,0007T) B EEKEE -

BEVEX BERRES
CEkA

HE2016F12A31BZFE » NEH
BEE(RB)BRARAG(ER)
—EZBIYFE=FFNBEEEREIN
W BE BB 5 R B565F R an R 178 /&
FLIBEBZHAE(ZWE)  REA
7 # 178,000,000 7T (#E & R A R #&
154,174,0007T) ° & Z20164F12 A31
Bl EXfFiE£E%32,930,0007C
(HEE N AR®E29,456,0007T) FTEH °

BITEBER  BIEEE
FER - ROERRES

BITERERESREAEBEMBEAEN
Bek=10ARE=EA AN EH
REHTER - BRI ERAEFE
NEE - EFFEZRBFTHERNEN
R0.3% £4.13% (20154 £0.50% =
4.13%)F8 °

AEEFERRITEIIREMNERONE
1% (2015 20.30% E1.12% )5t & ©

REERFARNRITEBRTFRAARKE
T8 » $R0.42% £3.77% (2015F A&
0.75%%4.13% )M FEFIZEF B © 2016
F12A31 BN - ERRITEMSRF
FKAE#110,000,0007T (20155 & A
K #110,000,0007C) 2/ EAH A —F ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 A& Z=2016F12A31RA L2 FE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25. ENERRESERE
2015
RMB'000
ARBTF 5
Trade payables FEREK
— Subsidiaries of Gemalto N.V. — Gemalto N.V.([ Gemalto |)
("Gemalto”) (Note) BB R B (K i) 126,157 173,069
— Related company of Gemalto — Gemalto®) @ A &)
— DataCard Corporation — DataCard Corporation 16,331 5,139
— Third parties — =k 190,848 235,224
333,336 413,432
Bills payables — secured EERENERE
— Subsidiaries of Gemalto — GemaltoRy i B2 7] 88,290 128,337
— Third parties —%=5 93,475 25,548
181,765 153,885
515,101 567,317
Note: Gemalto is a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands Hiat - Gemalto R #& i B E# K » ARG £
and whose shares are listed and traded on NYSE Euronext Amsterdam 4 — )2 B3 55 3 5 BT 2 B 45 B 5 73 58
and NYSE Euronext Paris. It controlled Gemplus International S.A., SHAMERXZH ETX 5 ° Gemplus
a substantial shareholder of the Company with significant influence International S.A.# GemaltofZE#l + 2 —=
over the Company which is a limited liability company incorporated in REREZTMAEREELA - EMER
Luxembourg, throughout both years. R AR E AR R R A GREZEN+

BRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The Group normally receives credit terms of 60 to 180 days
from its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of the
Group's trade and bills payables based on invoice date and bill

25. ENERRENRE @

AEE—REHRERFREOHE180H
MEEH - T ASREHRAREAEE
ENERRENEREEZEAHRE

issuance date respectively at the end of the reporting period: B A HHABRE AT ¢
2015
RMB'000
ARETTT
Age BRER
0 - 90 days 0%90H 414,616 484,836
91 - 180 days 91%2180H 87,678 64,110
181 — 365 days 181%365H 8,637 14,194
Over 1 year HBiE—F 4,170 4,177
515,101 567,317
=%
26. OTHER PAYABLES 26. H A FRIE
2015
RMB’'000
ARETTT
Customers’ deposits ZERFES 32,398 45,727
Payroll and welfare payables R TE KA 48,272 38,665
Value-added tax payables FETIEER 47,444 41,547
Warranty provision REBESBE 4,775 4,775
Delivery and postage payables ENEERBE 1,923 14,399
Other tax payables Hith FE LR 843 378
Other payables H b fEF 5RIE 1,755 2,171
137,410 147,662
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE E2016512A31R L2 FE

27.

28.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 27. B BE
2015
RMB’000
ARETTT
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January »1A1H 18,720 4,820
Government grants received during the year = XU T 6 Bh 700 17,000
Released to profit or loss during the year FREFAEZ (4,720) (3,100)
At 31 December M12A31H 14,700 18,720
Goldpac Limited received government grants throughout the T HBERR A AFAFTKE A
year from the relevant PRC local authorities as an incentive in BN RERHEERREBRS
relation to technical know-how on the development of smart REMEREOEE o B BT mA
cards and solutions services. Such government grants were THHETK  HEABREREFTTET
recognised in the profit or loss as other income, expenses, EEBRBATEFIHEEBIEREAM
gains or losses when the research was completed and the WA~ X RSB RE ABE ©
related verification procedures have been completed and
approved by the PRC local authorities.
DEFERRED TAXATION 28. IEERHIE
The following is the deferred taxation recognised and AT REERNEERIEREFAR
movements thereon during the year: FE)
PRC withholding tax
on undistributed
earnings
Bl R 2 B
FEFER BB
RMB’000
ARBTIT
At 1 January 2015 7201551 A1H 13,407
Charged to profit or loss during the year (note 11) Rzt A8z (HzE11) 9,341
At 31 December 2015 7K20154F12H31H 22,748
Charged to profit or loss during the year (note 11) Rzt A2 (HaE11) 7,597
Credited to profit or loss during the year on BREAUBIFE D RIREMRFEA
dividend distribution in prior years (note 11) FTAB=(HETT) (20,234)
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 10,111

SHERBZERERAT —B-—AEFH 175

Corporate
Information
EER

Financial
Highlights
HRHE

2016 £AER

2016 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis

BEBH AR

Management
EEREREERE

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
EEE®RE

Corporate Governance
Report
LEERBE

Environmental,
Social and Governance
B HERER

BMBHRE

o)
2
=
9]
=
9]
2
©
8
%]
=
v
c
]
=
i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

29. SHARE CAPITAL

29. IR

Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZERHA ok
Notes ‘000 HKD’'000
Hta T BT T
Issued and fully paid: BEETAHR

At 1 January 2015 M2015F1H1H8 830,707 1,477,669

Issue of shares upon exercise of R IT B AR R P 31T
share options E0)idr) (a) 3,784 19,454
Shares repurchased and cancelled B % KRR SE AR (D (b) (824) =
At 31 December 2015 201512 H31H 833,667 1,497,123

Issue of shares of upon exercise of E1TE IR AT
share options =g (c) 362 1,872
Shares repurchased and cancelled 51 8 K% 7 88 AR 10 (d) (565) —
At 31 December 2016 MR2016F12 A31H 833,464 1,498,995
RMB’000
ARBTIT

Shown in the financial statements as  ZA/R 5B REK

— at 31 December 2016 — R20165%F12H31H 1,191,941
— at 31 December 2015 — R2015%F12H31H 1,190,419

Notes: M

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2015, 3,784,000 share options were (@) REZ2015F12A31HZFE B
exercised and converted into 3,784,000 ordinary shares at the conversion 3,784,000 fE IR #E 12 B IR B 62,71 7T 77
price of HKD2.71. (&3 88 53, 784,000% Z AR -

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company repurchased (b)  REZ2015F12H31HZFE  KREI#
and cancelled a total of 824,000 ordinary shares of the Company at T3 AT [E] fE I i #Y T #51 824,000 K 2
an aggregate cost of HKD3,772,000 (equivalent to approximately Bl A Z A AR - Bl A BER3,772,000
RMB2,984,000) on the Stock Exchange. T (HHERAR#2,984,0007T) °

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2016, 362,000 share options were (c) REZE2016F12H31HILZFE  F
exercised and converted into 362,000 ordinary shares at the conversion 362,000/R BB IR E1Z FREK2.71 L 1T1E
price of HKD2.71. W22 5362,0004% ZiAEE -

(d)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company repurchased (d) REZF2016F12A31HIFZFE XA

176

and cancelled a total of 565,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
an aggregate cost of HKD1,351,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,132,000) on the Stock Exchange.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE E2016512A31R L2 FE

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares through the Stock
Exchange as follows:

29. B (@)

REE2016F12831BHZFE » AR
AR B FTEI B AR B AR T

No. of Price per share Aggregate
ordinary BRER consideration
shares Highest Lowest paid
Month of repurchase =i A ¢ ZEREE BE B®I& S{t4E
HKD HKD HKD'000
ok ok PEHET T
June 2016 20166 A 565,000 2.41 2.37 1,351
1,351
The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase. BN EE 2B o

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

All the shares which were issued during the year rank pari
passu with the existing shares in all respects.

A EARE ZAEATHE R
BE LEIBLOARAZEHHE

PIEEESFRTHRNDESTEERSE

B EBRFES °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

178

TRANSACTIONS
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The pre-IPO share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 for the primary purpose
of recognise the contribution of certain employees and
directors made or may have made to the growth of the
Group and/or the listing of the Group on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, and will expire on 3 December
2019.

At 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the pre-IPO share option scheme was
30,126,000 (2015: 31,061,000), representing 3.61%
(2015: 3.73%) of the shares of the Company in issue on
that day.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November
2013, upon payment of HKD1.0 by the grantee.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016

30. MR BERN NS

(a) ER PRSI

%

BRAMABEEABRETER
2013411 B15BE 2 AR I
EmAZELE  BEEEELAEE
ETEERESHENIBETE
EREASRBEEE K SRR
BRET TR ERL - WiR2019
F12H3B3H -

MN20165F12A831H - EE XA
MEZEERBERESESTERE R
RITERRD A E = 530,126,000
(2015 : 31,061,000) * 15 A& A
AR 201612 A31 HE %17
M D Bl = #93.61% (2015 -
3.73%) ©

REM B ENEE2013F11A4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

NEE2016FE128318IE2EE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options held by directors and employees and
movements in such holding for both years ended 31
December 2015 and 2016:

30. MR BERNZNRS

(%)

(a) BRARMBERBRE

HEC )

TREBEANTEEREEFE
EREREREREE2015K
20165F12 A3 1A 2 FE 2 &

Number of share options
BRERA
Exercise At Exercise  Forfeiture At Exercise  Forfeiture At
price 1 January during during 1 January during during 31 December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2015 the year the year 2016 the year the year 2016
R2015% 015% 0158 0165 20165 WIEE K016
RAH GRS i SRIEE 1818 AR EAXN 1818 EAfE ERXM 128318
(Notes)
(Hi)
Directors
iz
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2014 HKD2.71 1,640,000 (1,440,000) — 200,000 - — 200,000
3 December 2014 10 3 December 2019
0135114198 H201311A19A2 820145125482 LT
2014512730 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2015 HKD2.71 1,640,000 - — 1,640,000 - — 1,640,000
to 3 December 2015 10 3 December 2019
20135115198 AL013%11A198% B01551284B% BT
2015512838 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2016 HKD2.71 1,640,000 — — 1,640,000 - — 1,640,000
to 3 December 2016 10 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013511A19AZ H2016512A4R% AL
201651283H 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2017 HKD2.71 1,640,000 — — 1,640,000 - — 1,640,000
to 3 December 2017 t0 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013511A19RZ A2017512A4R% AL
2017%12A3A 2019%12A3A
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2018 HKD2.71 1,640,000 — — 1,640,000 - — 1,640,000
to 3 December 2018 10 3 December 2019
0135114198 H2013511A19A2 820185125482 LT
2018%12A3A 2019%12838
8,200,000 (1,440,000) — 6,760,000 - — 6,760,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B A RO MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

30. AR HERAY Y

(%)

R

(a) BRARMBEmBRE

HEC 3

Number of share options
BRE"A
Exercise At Exercise  Forfeiture At Exercise  Forfeiture At
price 1 January during during 1 January during during 31 December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2015 the year the year 2016 the year the year 2016
R2015% 20155 W15 H016%F 20165 W6E  R016F
RiLAH BRE i3] SROEE 1818 EAGE  ERAX 1818 EmfiE FRXM 128318
(Notes)
(#)
Employees
&8
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2014 HKD2.71 4,853,000 (1,767,000) — 3,086,000 (47,000) (33,0000 3,006,000
to 3 December 2014 10 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013511A19A2 B2014512848% AL
2014512838 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2015 HKD271 5,560,000 (57,0000 (112,000 ~ 4,871,000 (315,000 (48,000) 4,508,000
to 3 December 2015 t0 3 December 2019
0135115198 B2013511A19RF A2015612A48% BELINT
2015512A3A 2019512438
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2016 HKD2.71 5,560,000 - (112,000 = 5,448,000 - (164,000) 5,284,000
to 3 December 2016 to 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013%11A198% B2016512548% BT
2016512A3A 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2017 HKD2.71 5,560,000 - (112,000 = 5,448,000 - (164,000) 5,284,000
to 3 December 2017 10 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013%11A198% B2017%12848% BT
217512838 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2018 HKD2.71 5,560,000 - (112,000) = 5,448,000 - (164,000 5,284,000
to 3 December 2018 10 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013511A19A2 H2018512A48% AL
2018512438 2019512838
27,093,000  (2,344,000)  (448,000) 24301,000 (362,000  (573,000) 23,366,000
Total
At 35293000  (3,784,000)  (448,000) 31,061,000  (362,000)  (573,000) 30,126,000

Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is
HKD2.45.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE E2016512A31R L2 FE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The share options shall vest in 5 tranches subject to
specific period of services of certain of employees,
executives and officers for the Group and/or the listing of
Shares on the Stock Exchange. Due to the resignation of
certain of employees, executives and officers during the
year ended 31 December 2016, part of the share options
were forfeited.

The fair values of the share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at
RMB69,935,000 (equivalent to HKD88,954,000) using
the Binominal Option Pricing pricing model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

Share price HKD4.52
Exercise price HKD2.71
Expected life 6 years
Expected volatility 46.9963%
Expected dividend yield 1.0822%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426%

Fair value per option HKD2.4250 to HKD2.4791

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB10,502,000 (2015: RMB16,868,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2016 in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

30. MR BERNZNRS

()
(a)

EREEEERERAA

ENGE ST
HEIC )

BEXLET  ERENBEY
AEBE RAEEETHOEE
PR EARE - BAREAS D AR
B - &HZE2016F12A318 1t -
HRARLET  EEERBEN
BEEE - S0 MEARAER K -

REZE2013F12A31HIEZ2 &
B BENBEREAEARERE
A-EAEEEEXGFEL A
AR #69,935,000 T (T4 B
88,954,0007T) * KABX T :

& & B4 52T
TEE B2 717
TEHAS @ 64F
TEHAR i 46.9963%
TE AR AR B as 1.0822%
£ [ i ) 2R 1.2426%
HMhERE L, B2.4250FE

R~ fEE B2 47917T

T8 HA R 08 R 1R PR R SRR K% P
RTT R A LR IR TEH) » IR
AFMAZARSPELREERE
ErLIFE R - TTERSIRTA
AR ENRELGELETHE

REZE20165F12 831812 5
B AEERAR L ERE
"RHES A ARK10,502,000
gt (20154 : AR% 16,868,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

182

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme,
approved by the shareholder’s resolution passed on
15 November 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”), are
substantially the same as the terms of the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme except that:

(i)  the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue at the date of
listing of the shares of the Company on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange;

(i)  the maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of offer to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of offer to grant; and

(iii) The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company at their discretion and will not
be lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; (b)
the average closing price of the ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

On 7 September 2016, 20,000,000 share options were
granted and all share options were forfeited during the
year. As at 31 December 2016, no shares in respect
of which options had been granted are remained
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share option held by directors and employees and
movements in such holding for the year ended 31
December 2016:

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 A& Z=2016F12A31RA L2 FE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 30. U AEBNIZARS
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)

(b) H& R AE ST &8l am)

Corporate
Information
EER

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

Highlights
HRHE

Financial

Number of share options g
BRARE 2%
At Grant  Forfeited At '§g
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December § 8
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price 2016 the year the year 2016
20165 20165 55
YRS B84 i ARR 1A1R EAEE  EAAR nElR SO0
HKD o
AT s
S
3 2R
52X
Directors 9 <E
g 2m
7 September 2016 From 7 September 2016 From 3 April 2017 261 — 390,000 (390,000) = s
to 2 April 2017 10 31 December 2023 5 m
2016%9A7H B201659A78E B201754A302 35p
N17%4F2A 20312831 E =
S S
7 September 2016 From 7 September 2016 From 3 April 2018 261 - 390,000 (390,000) - a
to 2 April 2018 t0 31 December 2023 5 gl
- @
2016%F9A78 B201659ATRE B201854R3RE 331
201854328 2003%128318 5
7 September 2016 From 7 September 2016 From 3 April 2019 261 — 390,000 (390,000) — g 4
to 2 April 2019 t0 31 December 2023 S é%
201659478 E2016F9A7EE B2019F4 4382 ’é‘g?jﬁ
201944728 023F12A318 §
— 1,170,000 (1,170,000) = o
52
Zom
3
:
S
g3
28
&
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 R & ZE2016F12A31A L2 FE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

30. MR BERN NS

(%)

(b) H&RRAE 5T 8l am)

Number of share options
RHREHR
At Grant  Forfeited At
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price 2016 theyear the year 2016
2016 #0165
RiAH 1 i i g 1818 FARE  FAXY 12838
HKD
A%
Employees
&
7 September 2016 From 7 September 2016 From 3 April 2017 261 — 6,276,000 (6,276,000) —
to 2 April 2017 t0 31 December 2023
201659A7H B2016F9A7EE B201754A3R2
2017464728 2023F12A318
7 September 2016 From 7 September 2016 From 3 April 2018 261 —  6277,000 (6,277,000) —
to 2 April 2018 t0 31 December 2023
201659878 B201659A7R % H2018F4A3EE
201854428 2023%12A318
7 September 2016 From 7 September 2016 From 3 April 2019 261 —  6277,000 (6,277,000) =
t02 April 2019 t0 31 December 2023
201659778 B201659ATRE B19F4A3RE
201954528 2035128318
— 18,830,000 (18,830,000) -
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 30. U AEBNIZARS
TRANSACTIONS (continued) (&)

(b) BB REFT & ()

Corporate
Information
EER

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches subject to

achievement of certain performance targets by the B ELaEKENEE - ERRHE g
relevant directors and employees and/or the Group. B =HEB - HE2016F 12 %kﬁ
During the year ended 31 December 2016, due to the A31HIE BHRESERRZEE gﬁt
failure of their performance targets, the share options K BERRETREEEE - HILEE §§

could not be vested, thus the share options were
forfeited.

The fair values of the share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2016 were calculated at

BREEBES  8TRHAE

RIS

MRE1IE2016F12 A31B1IEZ F
B RENBEREABRLEMRE

Financial
Highlights
HRHE

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

RMB15,463,000 (equivalent to HKD17,852,000) using Ao-EXRETEERSE 63
the Binominal Option Pricing pricing model. The inputs B ANR®15,463,000 (37 & B 1 é‘éﬁ
into the model were as follows: 17,852,0007T) @ AR T : ég?@jﬂ
Share price HKD2.61 A% (= S 61T s
Exercise price HKD2.61 1T1EE EED 617T S
Expected life 7.3 years SERE 7.34 3 é;‘ﬁl
Expected volatility 49.86% 75 AR 1 49.86% E ’é-fvﬁ:
Expected dividend yield 4.21% FEHANR B ES 4.21% éé’ﬁ
Risk-free interest rate 0.72% 42 [, g 1) = 0.72% 8
Fair value per option HKDO0.8926 FHEIREZ B H0.89267T 5 Efé
DR EE goE
o O i

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical T8 HA O 8 = 3R FR FE S O iR 2 P g
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the EITER A LR IERTEH o %18 % %u
same industry. The expected life used in the model has ANFTAZEREG D KREEE 8 Z%?{nuu
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, Bt - (TEEHIETA g”‘jﬁ
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions AEZENmEHEETHE 5
and behavioural considerations. "
_5m
8 S
g™
Z
&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

186

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015
(the “Adoption Date”) with a duration of 15 years
commencing from 11 December 2015. The objective of
the Share Award Scheme are to (i) align the interests of
any employee, adviser, consultant, agent, contractor,
client or supplier of any member of the Group whom the
directors in its sole discretion considers may contribute
or have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”);
(ii) recognise and motivate the contribution of the
Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of
the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the
long-term growth and further strategic expansion of the
Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee
Limited (the “Trustee”) to administer and hold
the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open
market with funds provided by the Company by way of
contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 10,814,000
ordinary shares of the Company have been acquired
at an aggregate cost of HKD29,776,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB25,038,000) (2015: 27,000 ordinary
shares at an aggregate cost of HKD91,000, equivalent
to approximately RMB74,000). As at 31 December 2016,
no shares have been granted or agreed to be granted
to the Participants (2015: nil). There are 10,841,000
shares (2015: 27,000 shares) held by the Trustee and
RMB1,342,000 (2015: RMB8,302,000) was placed to the
Trustee as prepayments at the end of reporting period.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 A& Z=2016F12A31RA L2 FE

. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 31. KK E L E £53
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group REZE2015F12A31BIEZFE » K -
acquired the entire equity interest in Goldpac Golden Card EEBEE ARE2,000,0007TWE T @ég
Equipment (Zhuhai) Ltd. (the “Acquired Subsidiary”) which nEmeHEe R REAR AT K g?ﬁé
is engaged in trading of secure payment product in the BB AR 2 AEREZ  ZIKE 2
PRC for consideration of RMB2,000,000. The acquisition MEARTEERRERKELT S NE gp
has been accounted for using the purchase method. The e ZWEIAEE Rt E - WHEEL “gﬂ
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was 2B A AR1,375,0007T ° gg
RMB1,375,000. £

RMB’000
ARKETTT

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

Consideration for the acquisition: IR RE :

Cash consideration HeRE 2,000

and Analysis

BEBH AR

RMB'000
ARETT

Management
EBREEE

BER

Assets and liabilities recognised at RUBABRRZEERASE

the date of acquisition:

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Property, plant and equipment LEN =58 217
Bank balances and cash WITHBRRIRS 410
Tax payable JERT & (2)

Report of
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 RE ZE2016F12A31R L2 FE

31.

188

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(Continued)

31. BB 2 B (an)

RMB’000
ARBTTT
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEELE 2 EE .
Consideration transferred i 2 R (B 2,000
Less: recognised amount of identifiable B BRI HRIFEE
net assets acquired (625)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEE 2B iI,375
RMB’000
AR¥EFTT
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WBELZFRESM
Cash consideration paid for acquisition WSz RE 2,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired B MEZEeRREEEY (410)
1,590

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
is approximately RMB4,900 generated by the Acquired
Subsidiary. Revenue for the year then ended includes
approximately RMB641,000 generated from the Acquired
Subsidiary.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015, total
group revenue for the year then ended would have been
RMB1,684.7 million, and profit for the year then ended would
have been RMB241.9 million. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.
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32.

33.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

32. REHEAE

REBERFEBEA

Corporate
Information
EER

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed R TR Hi R » 2N 5 B 7R 6 ¥ 1 1] 3% g é’%
to make the following future minimum lease payments for HOKEHREETEYEMB AKX =
office premises under non-cancellable operating leases which KRS ZEE - BEWT - T
fall due as follows: gu
ZOlIER
RMB’000 R
AREET T .
Within one year R—FR 3,558 6,692 o7
In the second to fifth year inclusive MRE_ZTFRE 2,247 2,635 =
5,805 9327  tEk
£ o
S5 e
Leases are negotiated for a term of 1 to 5 years and rentals are Y1 BsEAREE - AL EH/MA é 4
fixed for an average of 2 years. FEETH o =
£ = o
- 255
The Group as lessor AEBEASLBEA i(’g
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted NAREH K - NEBHEHARALD S é%ﬁ
[a]

with a tenant for the following future minimum lease
payments:

71 B RE AR R SEEHERER

Report of
Directors
EEE®RE

2015
RMB'000 g
ARBFT €
Sy
2h
£ <
Within one year R—FR 675 — g
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. EAREIE g
2015 £
RMB'000 S5,
ARBEFTT L
Capital expenditure contracted for but BREAKEDE  BER Sy
not provided in the consolidated financial &M B FTLMBEARTIA ;:g
statements in respect of acquisition of RERE M TG R A g
property, plant and equipment BEARAX 146,178 4,503 £
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34.

35.

190

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in MPF for its qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s
salaries, up to a maximum of HKD1,500 per employee
per month. The assets of MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the group companies in an independently
administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligations of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme are to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits
as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis. The Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank loans.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

36. t T B

eI EER

2015
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERxRLERGB(BERS
and cash equivalents) MIBEEEY) 2,134,828 2,027,342
Financial liabilities ==L
Amortised cost BESEA AR 518,778 583,889

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount due
from an associate, trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade,
bills and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform an
obligation by the counterparties at the end of the reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group.

M EEREEE REEER

AEENTIECRMTIABREEIRK
REREMERKE  HMe@E
E - BAEERRHIA - ©HERRT
TR ROTEHMER - RITERKRR
T BENER  BENREREMGEN
A - ZFCR T ANFERNAEN
HERE - ZFeRTANEBARE
EmZER(EERREMERR)
FERREADESRR - BRENKE
BERABERHENTX - EEEEEN
ERZEFER  UEFRAZREUE
Iea BRI ©

EERR

ARSI ARERBEMRREE RO #E
RNEREERTHET HAKE
ERPBEENAREEERR LR
DRRZEEENAEBGRA BN
MRAFTREBREE ©
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36.

192

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group continuously monitors the level of
exposure to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk has adequate
procedures in place.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 79% of the total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 74%) which
was due from customers engaged in the banking industry.

The Group also have concentration of credit risk on fixed bank
deposits which are deposited with banks with high credit
rating. Other than the above, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk. The credit risk on
pledged bank deposits and bank balances is minimal as such
amounts are placed at banks with good reputation.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group to
risk of United States dollar (“USD"). The percentage of
the Group’s sales and purchases that are denominated in
USD, currency other than the functional currency of the
relevant Group companies are as follows:

36. TRt T H (@)

BREREE B ZEE (@)

EER B @)
AEBEERBRETERE S ERSIE
RH M YRR S - BT BA MR
EEERR AEESHEESEEE
RERKT - AR AR 5 - LA
W EBHIER ot - REBNRE
R EME — EERNEEN T RE S
#|OURERRTATKENSEELR
HERERE - Al - ARREER
B ADEEERBENEEKTE -

AEBEFESEHREAER  BR20164F
12A31BEWERBEFT79%(2015:
74%) BEWIRITERT FRIFE -

AEETEFREEAREAFRR
THRTEMEREESTAR © k&
Kbz REBESBEBEMBENEE
SHER EERRTERRBTR
KA RN A RFEBORT - &
EERBE

™5 [ b2

(i) EEmEkE
RRARETHERRAAINEE
BNEE  SAARIERETH
Rz o REBEAET(BIBABAR
SERANEEBEAINEE)
FHENHEERKBN B LN
T

2015

Sales HE
Purchases BREE

2.0% 0.9%
20.1% 14.9%
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

36. €@ T Eum)
B E SR B ZEBUR @)

5 Bk ()

() E¥mEpEE)
PATR 2 A £ M 7 AN 3R 45 H3 SR A SR
B EBHEEEERSEABE

mEfE :

Assets

2015
RMB’000
AREET T
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD ") PR ([AEE ) 102,046 11,411
usD eSS 764,618 730,856
RMB AR 9,291 466
Euros (“EUR") BT ([BRoTl) 79 76

Liabilities

=L

2015
RMB’000
AREET T
HKD i 982 1,409
usD = 31,377 65,259
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE( B! — 400
British Pound Sterling (“GBP") ARFIEEEESS ([HeE]) 59 =
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

194

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below includes the Group’s
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items where the denomination of the balances is in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group companies at the end of the reporting
period and has been determined based on the exposure
to exchange rates against the functional currency of
relevant group companies. For a 5% weakening of these
currencies against the functional currency of relevant
group companies and all other variables being held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year is as follows:

36. TRt T H (@)

BEREE B ZHEE (@)

™ 5 BB ()

(i) EHEEEE)
TR NBERESFTEIERE
BRI S B R A R BB INE
HEEBEBEREEQRREK
HEASEEA TN &K
HREBES  BERBRES
MEXUEBEEARNNES
BHEE  BaLEREERE
BARYEEEBEESY% -
MR EBRETE  KEEF
EMBIERAT :

Increase (decrease) in profit for the year

— HKD — B%
— UsD — X7
— RMB — ARE
— EUR — BT
— JPY — BT
— GBP — HigE

FEMBEECR)

2015
RMB'000

ARETIT

(3,766) (375)
(27,812) (24,960)
(348) (17)
(3) 3)

— 15

2 —

There would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year where the respective currencies
strengthens against the functional currency of relevant
Group companies by 5%.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
at the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and fixed
bank deposits (see note 24 for details).

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets, mainly interest bearing bank deposits
and balances. The Group cash flow interest rate is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates quoted
by the People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s
RMB denominated bank deposits and balances. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging

policy.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for interest
bearing bank balances at the end of the reporting period
and assumed that the amount of assets and liabilities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. 50 basis points were
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. The management does not anticipate a decrease
in interest rate in the next financial year having regard to
the trends in market interest rates and global economic
environment. Accordingly, sensitivity analysis on a
decrease in interest rates is not presented.

36. €@ T Eum)
BREREE B ZEEE (@)

™ i5 B B (E)
(i) FI= &z

AEENRABENRERER
W KB E FI R 8 B AR ERIT I K
K RITE PER(FRME24) »

AEENRSRNXRBRERY
R ZBEHUGTEETREENT
£ I2ERAERITEARMEH
EENTE - AKREMHAE K
NMNEFTREPRPEARRITEH
MEFEEBHEEARE
BRUTGEHNERELNTE o
AEE B ADR AN R EHEER

N THBRED T EERNER RS
HIR - A AR BRITERD
2= [ B 3 R AR AN R & R R
EREEENABEREEFER
EEN - ERAMEENEEA
£ [ ¥ ) 2R 2 e 5 M0 B 38 YA A
R E T RAS0MEER -
EEBBARRTIZH KBS MR
REEHERRIR - EEERTER
KO BREREPFELTAET
B BUBRIERTRE ZGUREDN

25 -
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36.

196

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)
If interest rates on bank balances had been 50 basis
points higher and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on profit for the year is as follows:

36. £t T B @)

BEREE B ZHEE (@)

™5 B (&)
(ii) FIZF)E fz (48)
MWERITIEZFIE FFHS0MEEE -

FEMBER

Increase in profit for the year

WEMEEE LY  HAFEF
RBENZENT :

2015

RMB’'000

ARBETIT

4,127 4,918

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest risk as at the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Liquidity risk management

The management of the Group has built an appropriate
liguidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and by
continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and
the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk management

Weighted
average Less than
Financial liabilities interest rate  On demand 3 month
SRBE MERIRIE BEX  HR3ER

%  RVB000  RMB'000
ARRTRL  ARBTR

36. ®RL T H (@)
BREREE B ZEEE (@)

RBESEREE @)

Over Over
3months 6 months
but not but not Total
more than  more than Over undiscounted  Carrying
6 months 1 year Tyear cash flows amount
6EAZT  1EUT RE5

MEAME  GEANE  1EML  REREE REE
RMB'O00  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000

ARETR  ARBTL  ARETL ARETR ARETR

At 31 December 2016 R2016%512A318
Finanial liabilities tRER

Trade and bills payables  EREFRERNZE — 515101 - - - — 515101 515101

Other payables HfnEf - 3677 - - - - 3677 3677
518,778 - - - - 518,778 518,778

At 31 December 2015 R2015512A31R

Financial liabilities SRER

Trade and bills payables ERERRENEE — 567,317 - — — — 567,317 567,317

Other payables Hip R - 16,572 - - - - 16,572 16,572
583,889 — — — — 583,889 583,889

Fair value of financial instruments

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting
period.

TMIAZAAEE

ARBEERRBEHERALTARS
MBEBEZEREENRERBBEZR
HEEENRERRZ AAEBERE -
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37.

198

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.

Other than the transactions and balances with related parties
disclosed in respective notes, during the year, the Group had
the following significant transactions with related parties:

Relationship and
name of related company Nature of transactions

CES L NCREL RHMHE

BBE RS

BRETEFARENEEBR TN SR
REERSN  MANFEER - AR EERE
FTEUNTERRS :

Companies controlled by Gemalto (Note):

i Gemalto X RIEHIE A B (AfaE)

Gemalto Pte. Ltd. Purchase of materials
R EEREE

Gemalto Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Purchase of materials
(BHEHREE(E8)ERAF]) R RHEREE

Sales of materials and
provision of service

R} 55 6 e 32 AR A

2015

RMB'000

AR¥ETT

36 30
233,992 618,805

518 =

Note: Gemalto is a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands
and whose shares are listed and traded on NYSE Euronext Amsterdam
and NYSE Euronext Paris. It controlled Gemplus International S.A.,
a substantial shareholder of the Company with significant influence
over the Company and a limited liability company incorporated in
Luxembourg, throughout both years.

The details of compensation of key management personnel,
representing the remuneration of the directors of the
Company during the year are set out in note 10.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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38.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which
are wholly-owned by the Company, at 31 December 2016 and

31 December 2015 are as follows:

Place/Country of
incorporation/
establishment/

38. fff B~ &)

K2016512 4318 K 2015512 A31
A #AQFAZ2ERENMEB AR
BRI

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/

Proportion of
issued ordinary
shares capital held

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
DAY/ B8 ERTRAZRAN ERAEERT
WEAREHE BE - EX RoEE EhEe EBRLA  EEER
206 2015
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%  100% Sales of smart cards
Company Limited (Note i) — HKD500,000 carrying personal
identity and other
payment solution
services
ERERBERAR (ML) B Ldki HERAARGERR
— & %500,0007T INBRAR
Goldpac Limited (Note i) PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sales
for a term of — USD43,000,000 of smart cards carrying
50 years as a personal identity and
wholly foreign other payment solution
owned enterprise services
commencing
21 June 1995
SHEER AR (M) e &R HEMHERAARME
18119956 A — %443,000,0007 mRXNEARLT R
1B AR5
IEBERE
Goldpac Smart Card PRC Registered capital 100%  100% Sales of smart cards
(Guangzhou) Limited limited liability — RMB1,000,000 carrying personal
company identity and other
payment solution
services
BN BB AR AR th AR HERAARHEMRX
BREFRAT — AR #1,000,0007T RAERAR
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38. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place/Country of
incorporation/
establishment/

38.

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/

R NGIRE D

Proportion of
issued ordinary
shares capital held

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
DRARY,/ &8 ERTRAZRAN ERAEERT
WEAREE BE - X RoEE EhEe EBRLA  EEEHR
206 2015
Goldpac Fintech Singapore Singapore Ordinary shares 100% N/A  Sales of smart cards
Private Limited (Note ii) — Singapore Dollars carrying personal
100 identity and research
and experimental
development on
information technology
SHESRBBRGINR)BRAT  HK Lakn B HERAARHER
(Hiztii) — F 1007 FRRMHE AR
Goldpac Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% N/A  Property holding
(Note i and ii) — HKD1
SHEREBRAR(HTiRi) B Laki & BHERS
— BB
Notes: KiaE -

(i) Directly held by the Company.

(i) These entities are incorporated during the year ended 31 December

20176.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or

assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

200  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39. B AR R ;IR

2015
RMB’000
AREFIT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets mEEE 11,256 13,546
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB M RE 466 583
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR 2 &E 300,407 290,077
312,129 304,206

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries S NGI ] 600,712 310,000
Other receivables H fib pE Uk 3R 1,342 8,438
Fixed bank deposits RITEHFR 687,988 296,089
Bank balances RITER 221,436 631,860
1,511,478 1,246,387
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables H {30 982 1,092
Amount due to subsidiaries JEASTBT /B A 5] 5/08 281,900 300,594
282,882 301,686
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,228,596 944,701
Net assets BEEFE 1,540,725 1,248,907

Capital and reserves ERN#E
Share capital N 1,191,941 1,190,419
Reserves HiE 348,784 58,488
Total equity s M EE 1,540,725 1,248,907

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March

2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lu Run Ting
EFE

Chairman and Executive Director

EFRTERWTEF

Hou Ping
&F

EFE2EN2017F3 821 BEZIL B
BAARYTBARRBREAES - WA
NTEEERREE :

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

EREEEERERAA

HITEFREFEHNTE

—z2-xgg8 201
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

39. M #EAR R T )

Movement in the Company’s reserve AN ZRESE X
Shares
held under
share Share
award options Retained
scheme reserve profits Total
B% 13 52 &b
EIfER BB RE R E
Z R4 R FI5H Fok]
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 20151818 — 33,319 35,869 69,188
Profit and total comprehensive 4 & Fl;E
income for the year ZHEKA — — 48,300 48,300
Share repurchase % 1 [21 B = — (2,984) (2,984)
Issue of shares upon exercise of 77 {5 B B i 3577
share options (note 29) B0 (HTa£29) — (7,231) — (7,231)
Purchase of shares under share  RiEAL(D 1€t 2
award scheme B AR (74) — — (74)
Recognition of equity-settled LR EE RN &
share-based payment BT 5RIE — 16,868 — 16,868
Dividends recognised as R D RS
distribution (note 12) (HieE12) — — (65,579) (65,579)
At 31 December 2015 M20159F12H31H (74) 42,956 15,606 58,488
Profit and total comprehensive & FEH0
income for the year 2mEUA — — 439,156 439,156
Share repurchase %5 188 = = (1,135) (1,135)
Issue of shares upon exercise of 77 {5 B IS4 M 8277
share options (note 29) B (HTa£29) = (700) — (700)
Recognition of equity-settled =GR
share-based payment R (D S~ — 10,502 — 10,502
Forfeiture of share options BRI IR 2 — (172) 172 =
Purchase of shares under share  RiEAL(D $EEN =2
award scheme AR (25,038) — — (25,038)
Dividends recognised as oY Pl i)
distribution (note 12) (HiaE12) — —  (132,489) (132,489
At 31 December 2016 720164128318 (25,112) 52,586 321,310 348,784
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40.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 3 November 2016, Goldpac Investment Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a
provisional sale and purchase agreement with the Vendor,
an independent third party, to acquire the Property
at a consideration of HKD178,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB154,174,000) for among others, the use as the
headquarters for the Groups’ overseas business. The total cost
of the Property together with transaction costs such as stamp
duty and property agent commission will be approximately
HKD194,554,000 (equivalent to RMB168,512,000). As at
31 December 2016, deposits amounted to HKD32,930,000
(equivalent to RMB29,456,000) was placed and presented
as deposit for property, plant and equipment as disclosed in
note 23. The acquisition of the Property was completed on 18
January 2017 and the Property is accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

On 6 January 2017, Goldpac Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, won the bidding in respect of the
land use right of acquired a parcel of land (the “Land Parcel”)
at the price of approximately RMB26,669,000 through the
auction (listing-for-sale) process. The Land Parcel is situated
on the west of Goldpac Tech Park, Zhuhai City, Guangdong
Province, PRC, where the operation of the Group is located.
The Land Parcel covers an area of approximately 20,999.56
square meters with a land use right of 50 years, where the
Group intended to construct an Asia’s leading Fintech and
data service center. As at year ended 31 December 2016, the
bidding deposit of RMB8,010,000 was placed and included
in other receivables as disclosed in note 21. The remaining
balance of the consideration of RMB18,659,000 was fully
settled on 17 February 2017. The Land Parcel is accounted for
as land use right.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B E

Year ended 31 December

BIEMN12A83MBZEE
2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETE ARBTT

RESULTS ES
Turnover S | 676,609 1,112,260 1,521,069 1,684,632 1,393,713
Profit before taxation B A5 A 1 137,948 183,330 256,552 296,179 244,566
Taxation Fi1m (22,835) (42,505) (43,045) (54,341) (39,666)
Profit for the year FEFHE 115,113 140,825 213,507 241,838 204,900
At 31 December
M12A31H
2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREBTIT ARETT AR®TT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEMARZ
Total assets BEE 707,908 1,945,875 2,317,297 2,606,841 = 2,599,582
Total liabilities “EE (494,441)  (548,763)  (706,459)  (792,627)  (726,253)
Net assets FEE 213,467 1,397,112 1,610,838 1,814,214 1,873,329
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